
 

B   O   S   T   O   N 
B O R O U G H  C O U N C I L  

 
Joint Chief Executive 

Rob Barlow 
  

 
Municipal Buildings 
Boston 
Lincolnshire   PE21 8QR 
Tel: 01205 314200 
Fax: 01205 364604 

 

 

 

30 August 2022 
 
TO: ALL MEMBERS OF THE CABINET 
 

 
NOTICE OF MEETING OF THE CABINET 

 
Dear Councillor 
 

You are invited to attend a meeting of the Cabinet on 
Wednesday, 7th September, 2022 at 6.30 pm 

in the Committee Room, Municipal Buildings, West Street, Boston PE21 8QR 
 

 
ROB BARLOW 
Joint Chief Executive 
 
Membership: 
 
Leader of the Council – Councillor Paul Skinner 
Deputy Leader – Councillor Nigel Welton 
Councillors Tracey Abbott, Richard Austin BEM, Deborah Evans, Martin Griggs and 
Jonathan Noble 

 

A G E N D A 
 
PART I - PRELIMINARIES 
 

A   MINUTES (Pages 1 - 10) 
 

 To sign and confirm the minutes of the last meeting. 
 

B   APOLOGIES  
 

 To receive apologies for absence. 
 

C   DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS  
 

 To receive declarations of interests in respect of any item on the agenda. 
 

Public Document Pack



 

 

D   QUESTIONS FROM MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC  
 

 To answer any written questions received from members of the public no later than 
5 p.m. two clear working days prior to the meeting – for this meeting the deadline 
is 5 p.m. on Friday 2nd September.  
 

PART II - AGENDA ITEMS 
 

1   RECOMMENDATIONS FROM OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY (STANDING ITEM)*  
 

2   RECOMMENDATIONS FROM THE BOSTON TOWN AREA COMMITTEE (BTAC) 
(STANDING ITEM)  
 

3   South and East Lincolnshire Community Safety Strategy (Pages 11 - 20) 
 

 (A report by Emily Spicer, Assistant Director – Wellbring and Community 
Leadership)  
 
Porftfolio Holder: Councillor Paul Skinner, Leader 
 

4   To Approve and addition to the Capital Programme to Part Fund the installation of 
4 new changing places toilets (Pages 21 - 26) 
 

 (A report by Adrian Sibley, Deputy Chief Executive fro Delivery)  
 
Portfolio Holder: Councillor Tracey Abbott  
 

5   Sustainable Products Policy (Pages 27 - 42) 
 

 (A report by Heather Prescott, Climate Change and Environment Officer)  
 
Portfolio Holder: Councillor Paul Skinner, Leader  
 

6   Quarter 1 Report - Performance and Risk (Pages 43 - 60) 
 

 (A report by Suzanne Rolfe, Insights and Transformation Manager)  
 
Portfolio Holder: Councillor Paul Skinner, Leader & Councillor Jonathan Noble 
 

7   Q1 Finance Report (Pages 61 - 80) 
 

 (A report by Samantha Knowles, Assistant Director – Finance, Commercialisation)  
 
Portfolio Holder: Councillor Jonathan Noble  
 
 

 
 
 
 
 



 

 

* In accordance with the Constitution, recommendations of Overview and Scrutiny 
Committees referred to Cabinet (if any) shall be included at this point in the 
agenda (unless they have been considered in the context of the Cabinet 
deliberations on a substantive item on the agenda) within six weeks of the 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee completing its report / recommendations. 

 
Call-In –any decision taken by the Cabinet concerning an item on this agenda can be 
‘called in’ in accordance with the Constitution, within 5 working days of the decision 
notice being published.  It is expected that the decision notice will be published on                                   
Friday 9th September. Subject to this publication, the deadline for calling in a decision 
is 5 p.m. on Friday 16th September.  
 

 
Alternative Versions - Should you wish to have the agenda or report in an alternative format 
such as larger text, Braille or a specific language, please contact Democratic Services on 
direct dial (01205) 314227 
 
 
The person to contact about the agenda and documents for this meeting is Lorraine Bush, 
Democratic Services Manager, Municipal Buildings, Boston Tel. no: 01205 314224  e-mail 
lorraine.bush@boston.gov.uk 



This page is intentionally left blank



 BOSTON BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

 
NOTICE OF DECISIONS TAKEN BY CABINET ON 27 JULY 2022 

 
DATE OF PUBLICATION: FRIDAY, 29 JULY 2022 

 
DEADLINE FOR CALL-IN:  FRIDAY, 5 AUGUST 2022 

 
NOTES: 
 
MINUTE NUMBER 20 HAS BEEN GRANTED EXEMPTION FROM CALL IN ON THE 
GROUNDS OF URGENCY. 
 
A COPY OF THE CABINET AGENDA HAS BEEN PREVIOUSLY CIRCULATED TO 
ALL MEMBERS OF THE COUNCIL.  IF YOU REQUIRE ANY FURTHER 
INFORMATION ON ANY ISSUE PLEASE CONTACT, IN THE FIRST INSTANCE, THE 
PORTFOLIO HOLDER OR OFFICER NAMED IN THE RIGHT HAND COLUMN. 
 

 
MEETING OF THE CABINET 27 July 2022 
 
 
Present: 
Councillor Nigel Welton, in the Chair 
Councillors Tracey Abbott, Richard Austin BEM, Martin Griggs, and Jonathan Noble.  
 
Officers –  
Deputy Chief Executive - Growth, Assistant Director - Economic Growth, Strategic 
Finance Manager (PSPS), Deputy Chief Finance Officer (PSPS), Democratic Services 
Officer.  
 
14  MINUTES 

 
The minutes of the Cabinet meeting held on 4 July 2022 were agreed and signed by the 
Chairman. 
 
15  APOLOGIES 

 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Paul Skinner. 
 
16  DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS 

 
None.

Page 1

Agenda Item A



 
17  QUESTIONS FROM MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC 

 
The Chairman of the meeting reported there was a question from Mr. Darron Abbott.  
However, in accordance with the Cabinet Procedure Rules as Mr. Abbott was not 
present at the meeting the question would not be asked.  A copy of the question and 
response had been circulated to Members for information.  
 
18  RECOMMENDATIONS FROM OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY (STANDING 

ITEM)* 
 

Reports had been considered by the relevant Overview and Scrutiny Committee and 
comments were included as appropriate.  
 
19  RECOMMENDATIONS FROM THE BOSTON TOWN AREA COMMITTEE 

(BTAC) (STANDING ITEM) 
 

There were no recommendations from the Boston Town Area Committee.  
 
20  UK SHARED PROSPERITY FUND INVESTMENT PLAN 
  

 
DECISION 
 
1. That the draft UK Shared Prosperity Fund Investment Plan be approved. 

2. That delegated authority be granted to the Deputy Chief Executive 
(Growth), in consultation with the Portfolio Holder for Economic Growth, 
to make any amendments that might arise prior to the submission of the 
UK Shared Prosperity Fund Investment Plan to Department of Levelling 
Up, Communities and Housing. 

 

Portfolio 
Holders 
and 
Officer 
 
Cllr Nigel 
Welton 

 
MS 

 

REASON FOR DECISION  

 

Councillor Nigel Welton introduced a report by the Deputy Chief Executive – Growth setting 
out the UK Shared Prosperity Fund draft submission and the background on the 
consultation process.  
 
The report stated that the UK Shared Prosperity Fund (UKSPF) had opened to provide 
funding for economic development across the whole of the UK.  The focus of the fund was in 
part the replacement for the previous European Social Fund, with an emphasis on skills 
based training and development, but was wider and more flexible than its EU forerunners.  
 
The South and East Lincolnshire Councils Partnership (SELCP) had been allocated £9.3 
million over the next three years.  The fund was a key part in the government’s ‘Levelling 
Up’ agenda, providing money for councils to invest in: 
 

• Local communities and places 

• Support for local businesses 

• People and skills 

Page 2



 
 

 
Full details of the theme objectives were set out in the UKSPF Prospectus document and 
replicated in the report.  
 
The breakdown of funding between the SELCP was:- 
 

• Boston Borough Council – £2.2 million 

• East Lindsey District Council - £4.4 million 

• South Holland District Council - £2.7 million 
 
It was noted that the funding element for the people and skills theme would not commence 
until 2023.  The funding may be spent on activities or buildings and equipment, but was 
predominantly for revenue projects and there was a suggested split between revenue and 
capital each year.   
 
The Investment Plan, appended to the report, was a strategy document that detailed how 
the allocation of the funding would deliver outcomes for people under the three themes set 
out above.  
 
In considering which projects would be selected to be funded through UKSPF, the 
Prospectus had been clear that there must have been significant public consultation to 
ensure the investment plan met the needs of the community and stakeholders to fully 
maximise the benefits of the fund. 
 
Consultation was held in June and July 2022 and numerous stakeholders were identified 
and encouraged to submit ideas and share further.  There had also been many engagement 
events held with the public and Councillors.   
 
The Corporate and Community Committee had considered the UKSPF at its meeting on 14 
July and were supportive of the plan.  Full Council had been consulted at its meeting on 25 
July 2022 and confirmed its support for the Investment Plan to be submitted.  
 
It was noted there had been a very positive response to the consultation which had been 
used to form the basis of the investment strategy. 
 
The Draft Investment Plan, attached as an appendix to the report, set out:- 
 

• Local Challenges for each theme 

• Local Opportunities for each theme 

• What outcomes were to be delivered for each theme 

• Approach to delivery and governance 

• Examples of some ideas from the consultation responses (for indicative purposes 
only) 

• Examples of collaboration 

• Capacity and capability 
 
It was proposed that 6-8 lead bodies would be identified through a competitive process to 
manage the projects.  This would commence once the Investment Plan had been submitted 
to enable allocation of funding, thereby allowing the lead delivery partners to be in place 
once the Investment Plan was confirmed.  
 

Page 3



The lead bodies would be responsible for a theme within the delivery arrangements for the 
UKSPF and report to the local authority and a governance board.  
 
The strategy for managing the UKSPF was to link the approach across the three authority 
areas in the SELCP.  Each Shared Prosperity Fund area had to have an independent 
governance group, and for Boston this was proposed to be the Town Fund Board.   The role 
of the governance group was to overview and advise on the evolution and subsequent 
implementation of the UKSPF strategy. 
 
The Investment Plan would be submitted to Government by 1 August 2022.  The 
competitive exercise would commence thereafter, with a final proposition being presented to 
Full Council once notification of the Investment Plan being approved had been received.  
 
In response to Member questions, the Deputy Chief Executive – Growth confirmed that the 
consultation period for the key stake holders was still active and that the funding of projects 
through a competitive process would hopefully begin in December 2022, subject to 
agreement of Full Council.  
 

 

 

OTHER OPTIONS OR ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED  

 
None. 

 

 

RECORD OF ANY CONFLICT OF INTEREST  

 

None. 

 

 

RECORD OF ANY DISPENSATION GRANTED  

 

None.  

 
The above decision has been granted exemption from Call-In 

on the grounds of urgency. 
 
21  CULTURAL FRAMEWORK FOR INVESTMENT 

 

 

DECISION 

 

1. That the formal adoption of the Cultural Framework for Renewal be 

supported. 

2. That delegated authority be granted to the Assistant Director – 

Economic Growth, in consultation with the portfolio holder, Councillor 

Richard Austin, for any final amendments to be made and 

Portfolio 

Holders and 

Officer 

 

Cllr Richard 

Austin 

 

LR 

Page 4



 
 

incorporated into the final document for publication on the Council’s 

website. 

3. That the extension of the work to reflect the Partnership with South 

Holland be supported. 

4. That the submission of the Expression of Interest for National 
Portfolio Organisation status with Arts Council England be noted. 

 

 

 

REASON FOR DECISION  

 
Councillor Richard Austin introduced a report by the Assistant Director – Economic Growth,  
setting out the background to the development of a new Cultural Framework for Boston and 
East Lindsey. 
 
The report stated that the Arts Council England (ACE) had awarded funding to both Boston 
Borough Council and East Lindsey District Council to support the development of Cultural 
Strategies.  Following the Strategic Alliance between the two Councils in 2020 it had been 
agreed to align the two strategies and an extension to the work was granted to ensure a 
connected approach to both projects.  
 
Set against the backdrop of Covid recovery and a new South and East Lincolnshire Councils 
Partnership, the Cultural Framework sought to build on the significant progress achieved in 
recent years to support cultural activity, build capacity and demonstrate commitment to 
excellence and innovation in cultural infrastructure, partnership and programming.  
 
The Framework aligned with the Government’s Levelling Up White Paper and funding 
opportunities of Cultural Investment through Town Deals and Levelling Up Funds.  It was 
also symbiotic with policy for the visitor economy and the ambition for culture to support the 
communities’ health and well-being.  
 
Both Boston and East Lindsey had been designated as Arts Council Priority Places, areas 
where there was significant potential but also where multiple barriers had historically stood 
in the way of system-wide cultural renewal.  The area’s ageing population and sustained 
loss of younger talent; limited transport inks; health and well-being indicators; fragmented 
communities; and lack of critical mass in a range of industries were commonly identified as 
challenging features or barriers to cultural development.  
 
Consultation through a programme of workshops and interviews had informed the draft 
Cultural Framework, attached at Appendix A of the report, which had proposed four strategic 
themes emerging from the consultation and research:- 
 

• Culture for All; 

• Health and Well-being; 

• Cultural Infrastructure; and 

• Cultural Places  
 
Full details of the consultation undertaken and responses were set out in the report.  
 
Feedback from the Arts Council England had been formally received and integrated into the 

Page 5



draft Cultural Framework.  The amendments included a refreshed vision, further alignment 
with the ACE strategy ‘Let’s Create’, definition of culture to include everyday culture, 
emphasis on data and a refined governance model to reflect the National Portfolio 
Organisation (NPO) Expression of Interest already submitted.  
 
The NPO funding would support a programme of art and culture across the Partnership, as 
well as enabling an education, research and skills programme to be developed.  Details 
were set out in appendix B of the report.  
 
It was noted adoption of the Cultural Framework would align with the Council’s Corporate 
Strategy supporting Boston as a place where people wanted to live, work and visit.  
 
Noting that the Framework document was in draft, it was suggested that the design, layout 
and format could be improved as some parts were difficult to read in its current form, 
particularly those pages which had a light colour background and light text.  
 

 

 

OTHER OPTIONS OR ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED  

 
None. 

 

 

RECORD OF ANY CONFLICT OF INTEREST  

 

None. 

 

 

RECORD OF ANY DISPENSATION GRANTED  

 

None.  

 
22  GENERAL FUND REVENUE AND CAPITAL OUTTURN 2021/22 

 

 
DECISION  
 
1. That the provisional year end position, variations to the 2021/22 

approved budget and resulting effect on the Council's balances and 
reserves as shown in Appendix A be noted. 

 
2. That Council be recommended to transfer £1,830,999 to the Funding 

Volatility Reserve to fund the 2022/23 budget, this being the Section 
31 grant allocated to the Council in 2021/22 but required in 2022/23. 

 

3. That the use of reserves in Table 3 at Appendix A be noted and 
approved. 

 

Portfolio 

Holders and 

Officer 

 

Cllr 

Jonathan 

Noble 

 

CM 

 

Page 6



 
 

4. That Council be recommended to drawdown £1,864,887 from the 
Funding Volatility Reserve which is the Section 31 grant set aside in 
2020/21 to cover the reduced Business Rates received in 2021/22. 

 
5. That Council be recommended to approve that the final revenue 

surplus (currently estimated as £165,024) be transferred to the 
Transformation Reserve to fund future projects which will help realise 
future revenue savings and service improvements. 

 
6. That the 2021/22 capital position shown in Table 4 be noted and the 

changes required to the Capital Programme for 2022/23 be approved. 
 
7. That Council be recommended to approve the carry forward of the 

Capital Budget of £3.55m as detailed in Table 6 of Appendix A. 
 

 

REASON FOR DECISION  

 
Councillor Jonathan Noble introduced a report by the Strategic Finance Manager (PSPS) 
and the Deputy Chief Finance Officer (PSPS) setting out the Council’s draft financial 
position as at the end of 2021/22. 
 
The report stated that the 2021/22 year had seen the country move out of pandemic 
response into a recovery phase.  The Council was still seeing the effects of the pandemic on 
its finances which had been both positive and negative.  Combined with the impact on 
household finances which had been seen in the latter part of the year, had meant it had 
been more difficult than usual to budget and forecast the financial position of the authority.   
 
A final revenue budget surplus, estimated at £165,024 had been identified which was mainly 
as a result of increased one off government support and review of its provisions and it was 
proposed to transfer the underspend to the Transformation Reserve to fund future projects 
which would help realise future revenue savings and service improvements.  
 
Full details of the financial position of the authority were attached at Appendix A of the 
report, including: 
 

• The General Fund Revenue Budget; 

• The General Fund Reserves Position; 

• The Capital Outturn for 2021/22; and 

• High level Treasury Management Performance for the year.  
 
Proposals for movements between reserves and amendments to the capital programme 
were set out in the appendix to the report.  
 
Cabinet were in support of the reserve budget being closely monitored and additional money 
being added where possible for future use.  
 

 

Page 7



 

OTHER OPTIONS OR ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED  

 
To not approve the reserve movements outlined. 

 

 

RECORD OF ANY CONFLICT OF INTEREST  

 

None. 

 

 

RECORD OF ANY DISPENSATION GRANTED  

 

None.  

 
 
23  UPDATE ON THE BOSTON FISHING INDUSTRY  

 

 

DECISION 

 

That the update on the Boston Fishing Industry be noted.  

Portfolio 

Holders and 

Officer 

 

 

 

REASON FOR DECISION  

 
Councillor Nigel Welton provided an update on the Boston fishing industry, following a 
meeting between local representatives and elected Members, and a commitment given at 
the meeting of Full Council on 27 June 2022 to lobby the Minister on the current issues 
being faced by the fishing community which was impacting on their livelihoods and future 
sustainability of the industry.  
 
Cabinet requested that arrangements be made for Members to visit the quayside to meet 
with the fishermen to discuss the on-going issues. 
 

 

 

OTHER OPTIONS OR ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED  

 
None. 

 

 

RECORD OF ANY CONFLICT OF INTEREST  

 

None. 

Page 8



 
 

 

 

RECORD OF ANY DISPENSATION GRANTED  

 

None.  

 
Update Item 
 
A discussion took place on the success of the dog fouling enforcement policy and it was 
agreed to request the Portfolio Holder, Councillor Deborah Evans, to report back to a 
future meeting of the Cabinet. 
 
 

The meeting ended at 7.22 pm 
 

 

Signed by the Deputy Chief Executive  
 
 
 

29 July 2022 
 

 
 

 
These decisions will come into force (and may then be implemented) on the expiry of 
five clear working days after the date of this notice UNLESS the decisions are 
subjected to the Call-In procedure or are starred minutes requiring Full Council 
approval.  
 
 

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
 

 

REPORT TO: CABINET 

DATE: 7TH SEPTEMBER 2022 

SUBJECT: 

 

PURPOSE:  

SOUTH AND EAST LINCOLNSHIRE COMMUNITY SAFETY STRATEGY 

 

TO RECOMMEND ADOPTION OF THE SOUTH AND EAST 

LINCOLNSHIRE COMMUNITY SAFETY STRATEGY 2022-25 

KEY DECISION: N/A 

PORTFOLIO HOLDER: COUNCILLOR PAUL SKINNER (LEADER & PORTFOLIO HOLDER) 

REPORT OF: 

 

REPORT AUTHOR: 

EMILY SPICER, ASSISTANT DIRECTOR – WELLBEING AND 

COMMUNITY LEADERSHIP 
 

PETER HUNN, COMMUNITY SAFETY MANAGER  

SARAH COCKER, COMMUNITY SAFETY PARTNERSHIPS OFFICER  

DEE BEDFORD, COMMUNITY SAFETY & ENFORCEMENT MANAGER 

WARD(S) AFFECTED: ALL 

EXEMPT REPORT? NO 

 

SUMMARY 

This report sets out the duties placed on local authorities and other named statutory agencies in 
relation to crime and disorder (Sections 5-7 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998). It outlines the 
current Community Safety Partnership (CSP) arrangements across the South and East 
Lincolnshire Councils Partnership (S&ELCP), and in Lincolnshire as a whole.   

A Community Safety Strategy has been produced to demonstrate the work of the South and 
East Lincolnshire Community Safety Partnership (SELCSP) which is working collaboratively with 
the County Safer Lincolnshire Partnership (SLP), as they seek to address crime and disorder at a 
local, sub-regional and County level.  Executive Board/Cabinet is asked to support the 
recommendation to adopt the strategy for the period April 2022 to March 2025. 
 

 

 

 

 

Page 11

Agenda Item 3



 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

1. Note the contents of the report and the work of partners in addressing crime and disorder in 
South and East Lincolnshire and Lincolnshire as a whole. 
 

2. Agree the Community Safety Strategy and identified priorities for the SELCSP for the period 
2022-2025 for consideration by Scrutiny prior to returning to Cabinet with any 
recommendations for endorsement and submission to Council for its agreement. 

 

3. That Cabinet agrees to provide delegated authority for the Deputy Chief Executive 
(Communities) to finalise with the relevant Portfolio Holders a programme for the 
development of a Community Safety Action Plan subject to the Community Safety Strategy 
and its associated priorities being agreed at Full Council. 

 

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 

To demonstrate and confirm the commitment of the South and East Lincolnshire Community 

Safety Partnership in working with the Safer Lincolnshire Partnership (SLP) to meet the statutory 

duties set out in the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 and address crime and disorder at a local 

level. 

 

OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED 

Continue to operate the SELCSP without producing a formal plan, at the expense of recognising 

the work undertaken locally to address crime and disorder across the S&ELCP. 

 

1. BACKGROUND 

 

1.1. CSPs (formerly known as Crime and Disorder Reduction Partnerships) were formed under 

Sections 5-7 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998. CSPs are made up of representatives from the 

police, local authorities, fire and rescue authorities, health and probation services (the 

‘responsible authorities’). The responsible authorities have a duty to work in co-operation with 

other ‘co-operating bodies’ for example Registered Social Landlords and Parish Councils. 

 

1.2. This report outlines the community safety landscape across the South and East Lincolnshire 

Councils (S&ELCP) geographical area and Lincolnshire as a whole, setting out the statutory 

duties placed on responsible authorities and the arrangements for how these are met in 

Lincolnshire. 

 

2. REPORT 

 

2.1. The 2007 Crime and Disorder Regulations (revised in 2011) set out the way in which the 

responsible authorities should carry out their functions as a CSP under Section 6 of the Act, and 

require the preparation of:  

 
Page 12



1) A partnership plan for the local government area,  

2) A county level community safety agreement, setting out the ways the responsible 

authorities in the county might work more effectively to implement the identified priorities 

by joint working. 

 

2.2. The responsible authorities for a local government area are required to formulate and 

implement a strategy for: 

 

1) the reduction of crime and disorder in the area (including anti-social and other behaviour 

adversely affecting the local environment), 

2) combatting the misuse of drugs, alcohol, and other substances in the area,  

3) the reduction of re-offending in the area,  

4) a new duty to formulate and implement a strategy for preventing people from becoming 

involved in serious violence and reducing instances of serious violence in the area. 

 

2.3. CSPs have other statutory duties that must be fulfilled: - 

 

1) to set up protocols and systems for information sharing, 

2) to regularly engage and consult with the public about their community safety priorities and 

issues, 

3) to commission Domestic Homicide Reviews (DHRs) following notification from the Police of 

a domestic homicide, 

4) to hold one or more public meeting during each year. 

 

2.4. In addition to the above, Section 17 of the Crime & Disorder Act 1998 places a duty on all 

employees of responsible authorities to take into consideration crime and disorder in 

everything they do. 

 

2.5. Working in partnership at a sub-region (SELCSP) and at a county level (SLP) enables the District 

Councils in the SELCSP to discharge their statutory duties. Examples include:  

 

1) Regularly engage and consult with the public – this had been discharged by the SLP to the 

Police and Crime Commissioner (PCC) who has a duty to consult the community before 

making recommendations on precept levels to the Police and Crime Panel. 

2) Commission DHR reviews - The DHR duty will be delegated to the recently formed Domestic 

Abuse Partnership. 

 

3. SOUTH AND EAST LINCOLNSHIRE COMMUNITY SAFETY PARTNERSHIP 

 

3.1. The SELCSP covers the municipal areas of South Holland District Council, Boston Borough 

Council and East Lindsey District Council (collectively known as the South and East Lincolnshire 

Councils Partnership).  Each local authority offers a range of community safety services to 

support a joined-up approach with partners.  For example, provision of CCTV, addressing Anti-

Social Behaviour (including coordination of the Anti-Social Behaviour Risk Assessment 

Conferences and Community Trigger), Public Places Protection Orders, emergency planning, 

Vulnerable Adults Panels (South Holland) and a safe at home scheme for victims of domestic 

abuse (East Lindsey). 

 
Page 13



3.2. Up to the end of March 2019, the SELCSP (formerly the East Lincolnshire Community Safety 

Partnership) routinely produced a partnership plan for reducing crime and disorder across the 

area. 

 

3.3. Over the last three years, the SELCSP has operated in a less formal way, acting as a conduit for 

cascading information from the SLP to the district level, whilst maintaining local links between 

the responsible authorities to facilitate multi-agency working when required. It is now felt with 

the development of the South and East Lincolnshire Councils Partnership a return to more 

formal arrangements is required. Linked to this is the need to develop a Community Safety Plan 

for the sub-region.   

 

3.4. The newly formed S&ELCP, between the three sovereign councils in the SELCSP area, provides a 

good grounding to support local community safety work, working with all relevant partners and 

complimenting (not duplicating) the work of the county level SLP. 

 

3.5. The SLP is the multi-agency forum for addressing community safety issues at a Lincolnshire 

County level and aims (working alongside others such as the SELCSP) to:  

 

1. Reduce crime and disorder and increase the safety of individuals and communities, 

2. Ensure those living, working, or visiting Lincolnshire feel safe and are equipped to cope 

with any hazards or threats they may encounter. 

3. Improve communication between agencies so they can work effectively. 

 

3.6. The SLP consists of a Strategy Board and several Core Priority Groups, which coordinate and 

deliver activity against the priority areas.  Lincolnshire County Council primarily funds the Safer 

Communities Team, which provides Business Management, Co-ordination, Analysis and 

Business Support for the SLP. 

 

4. POLICE & CRIME COMMISSIONER 

 

4.1. The Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011 introduced elected Police & Crime 

Commissioners (PCCs) for each police force, responsible for developing a Police & Crime Plan 

(PCP) for their local area and for commissioning community safety and criminal justice 

services. 

 

4.2. PCCs must have regard to the priorities of the responsible authorities making up the CSPs in 

the police area, and the responsible authorities must have regard to the objectives set out in 

the PCP, and to act in co-operation with each other in exercising their respective functions. 

Oversight of the PCC lies with the Police and Crime Panel, a joint committee that includes 

County and district council representatives. 

 

4.3. In July 2020, the Minister of State for Crime and Policing announced a two-part review of the 

PCC model.  The first stage of the review made recommendations to the Home Secretary on 

how to improve the accountability, scrutiny, and transparency of the current PCC model. It 

also served to map out longer-term reform ambitions in relation to fire and rescue services 

and mayoral devolution in England.  

 

Page 14



4.4. Part two of the PCC review aimed to examine further ways to strengthen and expand the PCC 

role, with a focus on the tools and levers that PCCs need to enhance efforts to cut crime. 

Recommendations from the review have been set out by government and include clarifying 

the local crime prevention landscape through an in-depth review of Community Safety 

Partnerships in England and Wales. 

 

 

5. DEVELOPMENT OF THE SOUTH AND EAST LINCOLNSHIRE COMMUNITY SAFETY STRATEGY 

 

5.1. A strategy has been prepared using the format of the last partnership plan (2016-2019). An 

action plan for the year ahead (2022-2023) will support the strategy and will sit with the 

SELCSP.  Information from the county strategic assessment has been reviewed along with 

routine data on crime and ASB from Lincolnshire Police, information from the pilot initiative 

StreetSafe (which allows people to anonymously report areas they feel unsafe), and 

perception data from the Lincolnshire Crime and Policing Survey. This has been considered 

alongside the county priorities identified for the SLP. Five priority area have been identified 

which are detailed in the plan: 

 

5.2. Anti-Social Behaviour (ASB) - Tackling ASB is a core role for the partnership with dedicated 

ASB Officers and Police Coordinators working together and with other agencies daily. We 

address high risk and complex ASB cases through multi-agency Anti-Social Behaviour Risk 

Assessment Conferences (ASBRACs). The district councils coordinate the Community Trigger 

(also known as the Anti-Social Behaviour Case Review) which gives victims the right to demand 

a formal case review where the local threshold is met. 

 

5.3. Hate Crime – Through working more closely with Just Lincolnshire (the single equality 

organisation in the county) it has been identified that reporting of Hate Crime in Lincolnshire 

has decreased by 12.5% in 2020-21 compared to 2019-20, a reversal of year on year increases 

over the last decade and against a 9% increase nationally. This is concerning, particularly as 

Hate Crime is widely acknowledged to be underreported. The SELCSP seeks to work to raise 

awareness of hate crime, targeting individuals and groups who are more likely to be victims, 

and ensure there are a variety of methods for people to report Hate Crimes and incidents with 

confidence.  

 

5.4. Safer Streets & Night-Time Economy – Community safety work to support the Night-Time 

Economy and the safety of our streets within urban centres and local neighbourhoods 

provides greater opportunities for local businesses and communities to thrive with a reduced 

risk of crime and disorder. Government’s Beating Crime Plan gives focus to early intervention, 

prevention, and practical measures to make communities safer, and to tackle serious violence 

and neighbourhood crimes. The Safer Streets Fund has enabled improvements to be made to 

CCTV and ANPR capacity in East Lindsey, amongst other measures, to bring focus to safety at 

the neighbourhood level. Multi-agency working between police and ELDC licensing officers, 

utilising the drugs itemiser provides a real opportunity to increase safety during the evening 

hours and gives scope for widening this work across the partnership area, facilitated by the 

SELCSP. 

 

5.5. The Safety of Women & Girls – Using local data and information, a bid was submitted to 

round four of the Safer Streets fund and was successful in bringing nearly £400k to the 
Page 15



partnership area. This will support work on Violence against Women and Girls (VAWG) in 

public places and aims to increase feelings of safety. CCTV was cited as something that would 

increase feelings of safety amongst local college students in Skegness and this is central to the 

bid.  A Sexual Violence Needs Assessment, commissioned by the PCC in 2020, showed that 

densely populated areas have the highest volume of offences.  Public engagement undertaken 

by the PCC’s Office also identifies that people worrying about being raped or sexually 

assaulted has risen year on year. Using police crime data and information from StreetSafe it 

has been possible to identify hot spot locations where harassment is the most frequently 

reported issue in Boston, Skegness, and Spalding. These areas are the focus of the bid, 

incorporating key night-time economy areas and pedestrian routes which have been identified 

as being disproportionately affected by VAWG. This compliments other work streams including 

the Women’s Concordat, which aims to improve outcomes for women and girls at risk of 

entering or who have already entered the criminal justice sector, and ensures it is embedded 

within local work streams to keep our sub-region a safe area to live, work and visit. 

 

5.6. Vulnerability & Safeguarding – Information from the Index of Multiple Deprivation shows that 

people living in the 10% most deprived neighbourhoods in Lincolnshire are three times more 

likely to have an adult safeguarding enquiry than those living in the least deprived areas, 

nearly four times likely to be a victim of crime, and nearly six times more likely to be in 

children’s social care. The second and third most deprived areas in the county can be found 

within our sub-region - Skegness and Chapel St Leonards.  Frontline officers, including police, 

council and health workers, encounter children and vulnerable adults on a regular basis, it is 

imperative that they are invested in safeguarding and adequately trained to carry out their 

duties competently. Recent cases of modern-day slavery and exploitation in Boston and South 

Holland demonstrate the need for officers and the public to report any suspicions. The SELCSP 

can drive work locally to ensure that officers can identify signs of issues such as sexual 

exploitation, county lines, modern slavery, and serious and organised crime, as well as 

understanding more recent approaches such as Contextual Safeguarding. 

 

6. CONCLUSION 

 

6.1 Sections 5-7 of the Crime & Disorder Act 1998 set out the way in which the responsible 

authorities should carry out their functions as a CSP.  

 

6.2 In Lincolnshire the responsible authorities work as a combined area to fulfil the statutory duties 

through the South and East Lincolnshire Community Safety Partnership and the County SLP. 

The SELCSP is an informally merged CSP covering the S&ELCP area. For the last three years the 

SELCSP has not produced a strategy, however, it is recognised that the work undertaken locally 

should be recognised and communicated to our partners and the public. A strategy has 

therefore been produced to promote the dedication and commitment of partners working 

across the S&ELCP in tackling crime and ASB and aims to provide a focus for actions to be 

developed to address the priority community safety issues that impact on communities within 

the sub-region.  

 

EXPECTED BENEFITS TO THE PARTNERSHIP 

The Community Safety Strategy has been developed as a cross-partnership strategy aiming to 

communicate our priorities and aspirations for keeping our communities safe. It highlights the 
Page 16



strength of local partnership arrangements; and provides reputational benefits to the S&ELCP as a 

driver of local action to tackle crime and disorder.  The proposed Community Safety Strategy will 

support our delivery against our statutory community safety responsibilities working alongside key 

partners. 

 

IMPLICATIONS 

SOUTH AND EAST LINCOLNSHIRE COUNCILS PARTNERSHIP 

The Community Safety Strategy demonstrates the commitment of the S&ELCP in keeping our 

communities safe and outlines how this can be achieved by working with external partners. It 

establishes the ambition of the SELCSP to maintain autonomy within the CSP structures in 

Lincolnshire. 

 

CORPORATE PRIORITIES 

The Community Safety Strategy supports the following corporate priorities: 

• Boston Borough Council – ‘Priority 1 - People Focused’ (main priority) 

• East Lindsey District Council – ‘Improve equality of opportunity across the district and in 

target areas’  

• South Holland District Council – ‘Your Place’ and ‘Your Health and Wellbeing’ 

The production of a Community Safety Strategy is a strategic activity within the S&ELCP Annual 

Delivery Plan 2022-23.  

 

STAFFING 

Current staffing resource across the partnership will support the delivery of the strategy with 

additional resources identified through further funding as necessary.  

 

CONSTITUTIONAL AND LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

The statutory duties required of CSPs, as set out in the Crime & Disorder Act 1998, which are met 

through working with the County SLP which works as a combined area for Lincolnshire.  

 

DATA PROTECTION 

Data Protection will be dealt with under the partnership’s information sharing agreements. 

 

FINANCIAL 

External funding has been granted through the government Safer Streets Fund which will support 
the Safer Streets and Safety Against Women and Girls priorities. Further funding opportunities will 
be sought wherever possible to support delivery of the plan. That aside, delivery will be managed 
from existing partner commitments and resources.  

 Page 17



RISK MANAGEMENT 

All risks will be managed as part of the strategy and action plan development as appropriate.  

 

STAKEHOLDER / CONSULTATION / TIMESCALES 

Consultation has been undertaken with the Portfolio Holders of each sovereign council, members 

of the South and East Lincolnshire Community Safety Partnership and with key officers across the 

S&ELCP (Corporate Management and Service Managers). Feedback has been positive and 

constructive; the version presented incorporates suggested additions and amendments to an initial 

draft. 

The delivery timeframe for the Community Safety Strategy (as set out in the Annual Delivery Plan) 

is Quarter 2, 2022. 

 

REPUTATION 

The Community Safety Strategy will have a positive impact on the reputation of the S&ELCP as it 

shows our dedication to improving the safety and wellbeing of our local communities. 

 

CRIME AND DISORDER 

The Community Safety Strategy supports delivery of duties placed on responsible authorities in the 

Crime and Disorder Act 1998. 

 

EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY/ HUMAN RIGHTS/ SAFEGUARDING 

The priorities within the strategy seek to address discrimination, harassment, and victimisation, 

and promote safeguarding of vulnerable people within our communities.   

 

HEALTH AND WELL BEING 

The Community Safety Strategy aims to address ASB and crime, which can have a detrimental 

impact on people’s health and wellbeing. Victim engagement and referral to additional support 

services is an integral part of its delivery.  

 

CLIMATE CHANGE AND ENVIRONMENTAL IMPLICATIONS 

None 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 18



LINKS TO 12 MISSIONS IN THE LEVELLING UP WHITE PAPER  

MISSIONS 
This paper contributes to the follow Missions outlined in the Government’s Levelling Up White 

paper. 

Wellbeing By 2030, well-being will have improved in every area of the UK, with the 
gap between top performing and other areas closing. 

Pride in Place By 2030, pride in place, such as people’s satisfaction with their town centre 
and engagement in local culture and community, will have risen in every 
area of the UK, with the gap between the top performing and other areas 
closing. 

Crime By 2030, homicide, serious violence, and neighbourhood crime will have 
fallen, focused on the worst-affected areas. 

 

ACRONYMS 

CSP – Community Safety Partnership 

S&ELCP – South and East Lincolnshire Councils Partnership 

SELCSP – South and East Lincolnshire Community Safety Partnership 

SLP - Safer Lincolnshire Partnership 

DHR – Domestic Homicide Review 

PCC- Police and Crime Commissioner 

ASB – Anti-Social Behaviour 

ASBRAC - Anti-Social Behaviour Risk Assessment Conferences 

VAWG – Violence Against Women and Girls 

 

APPENDICES 

Appendices are listed below and attached to the back of the report: - 

APPENDIX A South & East Lincolnshire Community Safety Strategy April 

2022 to March 2025 

 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 

Background papers used in the production of this report are listed below: - 

Document title Where the document can be viewed 

Crime & Disorder Act 1998 Crime and Disorder Act 1998 (legislation.gov.uk) 

Beating Crime Plan Beating crime plan - GOV.UK (www.gov.uk) 

South & East Lincolnshire Councils 

Partnership Annual Delivery Plan 

2022/2023.  

S&ELCP Annual Delivery Plan 2022-23 

Page 19

https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/1998/37/contents
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/beating-crime-plan
https://www.sholland.gov.uk/media/20475/S-ELCP-Annual-Delivery-Plan-2022-2023/pdf/MASTER__Annual_Delivery_Plan_22.23_-_Council.pdf?m=637847713477170000


 

CHRONOLOGICAL HISTORY OF THIS REPORT 

A report on this item has not been previously considered by a Council body. 

 

REPORT APPROVAL  

Report author: Peter Hunn 

Community Safety Manager 

Boston Borough Council 

Municipal Buildings, West Street 

Boston 

Lincolnshire 

PE21 8QR 

E-mail: Peter.Hunn@boston.gov.uk 

Signed off by: John Leach, Deputy Chief Executive - Communities 

Boston Borough Council 

Municipal Buildings, West Street 

Boston 

Lincolnshire 

PE21 8QR 

E-mail: John.Leach@boston.gov.uk 

Approved for publication: Leader of the Council and Portfolio Holder, 

Councillor Paul Skinner, Boston Borough Council 

 

 

Page 20



 

  

 

 

REPORT TO: Cabinet 

DATE: 7th September 2022 

SUBJECT: 

 

PURPOSE:  

Installation of 4 new Changing Places Toilets. 

 

To approve an addition to the Capital Programme to Part Fund the 

installation of 4 new changing places toilets. 

KEY DECISION: No 

PORTFOLIO HOLDER: Councillor Tracey Abbott 

REPORT AUTHOR: Adrian Sibley, Deputy Chief Executive for Delivery 

WARD(S) AFFECTED: Central Wards 

EXEMPT REPORT? No 

 

SUMMARY 

This report sets out to accept a government grant of £210k to support the introduction of 4 new 

Changing Places Toilets within the Town Centre. Each toilet costs around £75k to install so the 

total cost of the 4 toilets collectively will be approximately £300k, subject to a formal tendering 

exercise. The report also seeks therefore the approval of a capital contribution of £70k from our 

reserves to part fund the installation of 3 toilets that will be under the Council’s control. A 

fourth toilet is to be installed within the Blenkin Memorial Hall and the additional £20k will be 

met from the St Botolph’s Church Funds. 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

1. To approve an addition of £300k to the Capital programme to support the installation of 

4 new changing places toilets. £230k of this will be met from government grants and 

external funding so a use of reserves of £70k is requested, subject to a formal tendering 

exercise. 

2. To agree the installation of 4 new toilets within the Town, 3 of which will be under the 

control of the Council. 

 

  

Page 21

Agenda Item 4



REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 

Changing Places toilets are larger and more accessible for people who cannot use standard 

accessible toilets, with equipment such as hoists, curtains, adult sized changing benches, and 

space for carers. Increasing the provision of these toilets is part of a £30m national government 

disability strategy to allow more physically impaired individuals to undertake more recreational 

activities with dignity, confidence, and freedom. 

 

OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED 

The councils could decide not to accept all or part of the grant and not provide these enhanced 

facilities. This would though prevent the Council from improving the quality of lives for all of its 

residents and up to 1 million people in the country who rely on such facilities in order to enjoy 

the same opportunities as everyone else. 

 

1. BACKGROUND 

 

1.1 Changing Places toilets are enhanced toilet facilities, more accessible by severely disabled 

people who require additional support. As such they are larger and more sophisticated 

facilities, requiring higher levels of technical enhancements and support. Approximately 14 

million people nationally live with long term illnesses, disabilities, or impairments. An 

estimated 1million of these require Changing Places toilets, and this number is only set to 

increase. 

 

1.2 As part of its commitment towards improving the quality of life for everyone, the 

Government announced last Spring that it would be making £30m of funding available for 

the installation of new facilities for local authorities to bid for on a competitive basis. Bids 

were to be assessed on the quality of the submissions, the amount of match funding, 

partnership working and the end destinations.  

 

2. REPORT 

 

2.1 Following a consultation exercise with key members and stakeholders, including Parish 

Councils, Boston bid for funding to support the installation of 5 changing places toilets in 

and around the Town Centre in late Summer 2022. 

 

2.2 The sites that were bid for were as follows: 

 

Successful Unsuccessful 

  

Central Park  

Wide Bargate  

Lincoln Lane  

Blenkin Memorial Hall  

 Boston College 

 

 

Page 22



Boston College was not deemed to meet the criteria as it was classed as a new build and 

therefore not eligible. The funding applications were heavily over subscribed and in March 

of this year, the government announced that Boston would receive £210k of funding to 

support the installation of 4 toilets. This compares to a total £660k for the provision of 15 

toilets within the South East Lincolnshire partnership and £920k for the whole of 

Lincolnshire for the provision of 23 toilets. 

 

2.3 Latest market testing shows that costs of installation are approximately £75k per toilet. This 

means that the match funding requirement is approximately £23k per toilet. Blenkin have 

agreed that they will meet the costs of any additional funding over and above their 

allocation of £52k. This therefore means that the additional support required form the 

Council is around £70k to support the installation of 3 additional toilets. 

 

2.4 If we were to reduce the number of toilets that we provide, then the funding would be 

reduced proportionally. 

 

2.5 It is anticipated that most of the revenue running costs could be absorbed within existing 

budgets as the facilities are located next to existing toilets and so inspection costs could be 

accommodated within existing staff budgets. The additional costs are likely to be repairs 

and maintenance, consumables, and annual testing. These are not expected to be 

significant. 

 

3. CONCLUSION 

 

3.1 For a relatively small proportion of match funding, the installation of Changing Places toilets 

has the potential change the lives of many disabled individuals, both local to Boston and to 

potential visitors to the area. This initiative therefore contributes to enhancing the lives of 

everyone and is a positive step for the Council to take in this respect. By installing them 

within the Town Centre they can also allow Boston to become an end destination for 

potential visitors and thereby improve the attraction of the town as a place to visit. 

 

IMPLICATIONS 

SOUTH AND EAST LINCOLNSHIRE COUNCILS PARTNERSHIP 

These are numerous and detailed in section 2.2 of the report. 

CORPORATE PRIORITIES 

The installation of enhanced toilets facilities promotes equality and the improvement of lives for 

everyone. 

STAFFING 

None at this stage. 

CONSTITUTIONAL AND LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

None at this stage 

 
Page 23



DATA PROTECTION 

None at this stage. 

FINANCIAL 

The capital costs are detailed in the summary above. The revenue costs are expected to be 

relatively low and accommodated within existing budgets. 

RISK MANAGEMENT 

None at this stage. 

STAKEHOLDER / CONSULTATION / TIMESCALES 

Reports have also been submitted to BTAC and Scrutiny. Both Committees were supportive of the 

proposal. 

REPUTATION 

The ambition provides a positive message for the partnership. 

CONTRACTS 

None 

CRIME AND DISORDER 

None 

EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY/ HUMAN RIGHTS/ SAFEGUARDING 

The scheme substantially supports these ambitions. 

HEALTH AND WELL BEING 

The scheme substantially supports these ambitions. 

CLIMATE CHANGE AND ENVIRONMENTAL IMPLICATIONS 

None 

 

LINKS TO 12 MISSIONS IN THE LEVELLING UP WHITE PAPER  

MISSIONS 
This paper contributes to the follow Missions outlined in the Government’s Levelling Up White 

paper. 

Health By 2030, the gap in Healthy Life Expectancy (HLE) between local areas 
where it is highest and lowest will have narrowed, and by 2035 HLE will 
rise by 5 years. 

Wellbeing By 2030, well-being will have improved in every area of the UK, with the 
gap between top performing and other areas closing. 

 

ACRONYMS 

None 

Page 24



APPENDICES 

None 

 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 

None  

 

CHRONOLOGICAL HISTORY OF THIS REPORT 

Name of body Date 

Environment & Performance 21st June 2022 

BTAC 10th  August 2022 

 

REPORT APPROVAL  

Report author: Adrian Sibley, Deputy Chief Executive – Delivery 

Adrian.sibley@e-lindsey.gov.uk 

Signed off by: Adrian Sibley, Deputy Chief Executive – Delivery 

Adrian.sibley@e-lindsey.gov.uk 

Approved for publication: Tracey Abbott 

 

Page 25

mailto:Adrian.sibley@e-lindsey.gov.uk
mailto:Adrian.sibley@e-lindsey.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

 

 
 

REPORT TO: CABINET  

DATE: 7TH SEPTEMBER 2022 

SUBJECT: 

 

PURPOSE:  

SUSTAINABLE PRODUCTS POLICY  

 

TO ADOPT THE SUSTAINABLE PRODUCTS POLICY  

KEY DECISION: NO 

PORTFOLIO HOLDER: CLLR P SKINNER   

REPORT OF: 

REPORT AUTHOR: 

CLIMATE CHANGE AND ENVIRONMENT OFFICER 

HEATHER PRESCOTT 

WARD(S) AFFECTED: N/A  

EXEMPT REPORT? NO 

 

SUMMARY 

The production of single use products and the resultant waste from their usage and disposal is 

one of the greatest environmental concerns we face globally today. A Sustainable Products 

Policy has therefore been developed to outline the necessary actions required to ensure a 

sustainable approach to procurement of such items is carefully considered as we work towards 

a more circular economy. The Sustainable Products Policy sets out the commitment to 

discontinuing the procurement of single use products as far as possible within our internal 

operations and finding the best alternative solutions where they cannot be eliminated 

completely.  

 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

The Cabinet are recommended to: 

1. Adopt the Sustainable Products Policy in line with the Council’s commitments to 

resource and waste management, and mitigation and adaption to Climate Change, as 

specified in the Environment Policy.   

 

 Page 27

Agenda Item 5



REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 

Boston Borough Council has made a commitment to ensuring a sustainable approach to 

resource management as specified in Theme four of the Environment Policy and mitigating and 

adapting to Climate Change as specified in Theme 2 of the Environment Policy. Adoption of this 

policy is listed as a local priority in the Environment Policy and as a corporate priority in the 

South & East Lincolnshire Councils Partnership’s Annual Delivery Plan. The Sustainable Products 

Policy will assist us in establishing practices for a more sustainable procurement future, thereby 

supporting us in meeting our net zero targets and reducing the environmental impact of our 

operational activities.  

 

OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED 

Members could decide not to adopt the Sustainable Products Policy however, local authorities 

have a legal obligation to produce plans and policies to adapt to and mitigate climate change in 

line with the provisions of the Climate Change Act 2008. The Council has committed to reducing 

its carbon emissions to net zero by 2040 with a minimum emissions reduction of 45% by 2027 

and via the Environment Policy, has committed to ensuring a sustainable approach to resource 

and waste management. This policy will assist the Council in achieving these targets, alongside 

other co-benefits.  

 

1. BACKGROUND 

 

1.1 All single use products have an environmental impact and are typically intended to be used 

just once or for a very short period of time before being disposed of. The manufacture of 

single use products requires a large amount of energy and resources and largely includes 

the use of fossil fuels in their production processes. The extraction, production and 

refinement processes used all cause huge quantities of Greenhouse Gases to be emitted, 

meaning that their production is contributing to Climate Change, and they are often sent to 

landfill or take many years to decompose, causing air and water pollution. 

 

1.2 Single Use Plastics (SUPs), also known as disposable plastics are one of the biggest 

contributors to this environmental problem, contributing to Greenhouse Gas emissions at 

every stage of their lifecycle. At current levels Greenhouse Gas emissions from the plastic 

lifecycle threaten our global commitment to the Paris Agreement. SUPs do not biodegrade 

but break down in the natural environment into tiny particles known as microplastics which 

pollute soils and watercourses, contaminate the food web and cause a hazard to humans 

and wildlife.  

 

1.3 The most commonly recognised single use products include items such as plastic straws, 

drinks bottles and plastic packaging but also covers a wide-range of other things such as 

milk and sugar sachets, envelopes, disposable gloves, paper towels and drinks cups. 

 

2. REPORT 

 

2.1 This policy has been developed as a South and East Lincolnshire Councils Partnership 

(SELCP) document to ensure the widest influence possible across the sub-region, in line 
Page 28



with the strategic aims of the Partnership and the corporate priorities of the three Councils. 

It is a commitment in the Annual Delivery Plan to bring forward this policy. 

 

2.2 Coastal regions such as Lincolnshire are particularly vulnerable to the effects of 

inappropriate waste disposal, and it is therefore vital that we address the impact of our 

procurement practices and lead by example. Whilst the issue of Single Use Product litter on 

our coast extends beyond our organisational remit, it is an important consideration when 

seeking to understand the wider local picture and act as a community leader who 

represents the concerns of the broader community. 

 

2.3 The Sustainable Products Policy sets out the Partnership’s commitment to discontinuing the 

procurement of single use products as far as possible and finding the best alternative 

solutions where single use products cannot be eliminated completely. To achieve this, we 

must embed the Sustainable Products Policy in the Procurement Framework of the 

partnership authorities, to ensure an aligned approach to our procurement processes and 

establish a culture of reuse and recycling across the partnership. 

 

2.4 A comprehensive audit on the use of single use products will be carried out and will include 

the identification and potential financial implications of alternative products used both in 

offices and in Council services and operations. Alternative solutions to single use products 

should demonstrate best value both in financial and environmental terms, and the reasons 

for usage of these products should be ascertained and given due consideration. Where 

items are purchased for Health or Safety reasons, alternatives may not be viable.   

 

2.5 Schemes such as the Terracycle scheme for soft-plastics or Refill water stations which could 

be implemented in Council-owned buildings should be investigated, to ensure that we 

provide the infrastructure and resources required to promote and support sustainable 

resource management at every stage.  

 

2.6 Working towards a circular economy (the principle of remanufacture, reuse, repair, recycle) 

will see us keeping resources in use for as long as possible and allow us to prolong their 

lifespan where we can, and we must therefore ensure that the Councils’ Procurement 

Strategy incorporates the principles of sustainability and circular economy in line with this 

policy. 

 

2.7 The waste hierarchy (as shown on pg. 5 of the Sustainable Products Policy) provides a guide 

for considering procurement options and promotes the values of a circular economy. The 

hierarchy lists prevention as the most preferred option as it eliminates waste and emissions 

by reducing the procurement of products that aren’t crucial to our services or operations.  

 

2.8 The second most preferred option is reuse, which has a significant impact both on 

greenhouse gas emissions and pollution. It provides the means to prevent waste from 

entering landfill by making use of discarded products and limiting the need for new natural 

resources to be consumed by manufacturing new items.  

 

2.9 If the procurement of a new product is deemed necessary, then the next best option would 

be recycling. We should therefore purchase products which can be recycled wherever 

possible. Recycling also reduces the need to harvest new natural resources, reduces our 
Page 29



carbon emissions, prevents pollution, and can also create financial savings.  Ensuring that 

recycling facilities within our facilities are well labelled, easy to access, and that staff and 

customers are informed of their location and understand how to use them will be an 

important step to enable increased uptake of recycling across the Partnership. 

 

2.10 Where recycling is not possible it is vital to consider whether the product can be recovered 

in any other way, and we must be conscious of how items are disposed of at the end of 

their lives. Where single-use items can’t be avoided we must make sustainable choices and 

promote responsible and appropriate disposal within our organisation.     

 

2.11 As a community leader we must also look to support community led schemes which 

promote recycling and reduction of single use products wherever possible, to ensure that a 

wider cultural change can be established across the sub-region.  

 

3. CONCLUSION 

 

3.1 If we are to meet our net zero targets and the aims of our Environment Policy, it will be vital 
that we find ways to reduce our carbon emissions and seek more sustainable options to 
reduce the waste we generate as an authority. The Sustainable Products Policy highlights 
the damaging environmental impacts resulting from our consumption and disposal of single 
use products; and sets out the Partnership’s commitment to discontinuing the procurement 
of these items as far as possible, sourcing the best alternative solutions where single use 
products cannot be eradicated completely.  

 
3.2 The Sustainable Products Policy has been developed to outline the necessary actions 

required to achieve this, such as the importance of completing a comprehensive audit on 
the use of single use products. Ensuring that the Councils’ Procurement Strategy 
incorporates the principles of sustainability and circular economy in line with this policy will 
be crucial to its success, as will usage of the Waste Hierarchy as a procurement guide.  

 

EXPECTED BENEFITS TO THE PARTNERSHIP 

The Sustainable Products Policy has been developed as a cross-partnership policy aiming to assist 

us in meeting our net zero targets and the aspirations of our Environment Policies, providing 

reputational benefits through our accountability as a community leader. Improving our waste and 

resource management also provides environmental and health benefits resulting from reduced 

pollution levels.   

 
IMPLICATIONS 

SOUTH AND EAST LINCOLNSHIRE COUNCILS PARTNERSHIP 

Our ambition seeks to align activity and action across the three sovereign councils to deliver 
environmental benefits across the subregion, and shared learning for the benefit of the 
Partnership. 
 
CORPORATE PRIORITIES 

Page 30



The Sustainable Products Policy will support us in achieving Theme’s Two and Four of the 

Environment Policy and adoption of this Policy is listed as a corporate priority in the South East 

Lincolnshire Council’s Partnership Annual Delivery Plan.    

STAFFING 

None.  

CONSTITUTIONAL AND LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

Local authorities have a legal obligation to produce plans and policies to adapt to and mitigate 

climate change in line with the provisions of the Climate Change Act 2008 and failure to do so 

could result in a legal challenge being made. 

DATA PROTECTION 

None.  

FINANCIAL 

External funding opportunities will be sought wherever possible whilst ensuring that future 
expenditure within existing Council budgets seeks to include carbon savings and waste 
management as part of the procurement and delivery of services. The completion of an audit will 
confirm whether any increase in expenditure will be required to achieve the aims of this policy 
however it is often the case that financial savings can be made through reduced waste disposal 
costs and bulk purchasing.   
 
RISK MANAGEMENT 

None. 

STAKEHOLDER / CONSULTATION / TIMESCALES 

Consultation with Key Officers and portfolio holder have been undertaken. 

REPUTATION 

Adoption of a Sustainable Products Policy shows our commitment to meeting both our net zero 

targets and environmental aims, enhancing our reputation as a community leader and setting a 

positive example for others to follow. 

CONTRACTS 

None.  

CRIME AND DISORDER 

None.  

EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY/ HUMAN RIGHTS/ SAFEGUARDING 

None. 

HEALTH AND WELL BEING 

The Sustainable Products Policy aims to deliver positive outcomes for the natural environment and 

the health and wellbeing of our communities. Plastic products in particular release chemicals 

during their degradation which have a negative impact on plant and animal habitats and once 

Page 31



released the resultant gas emissions can be toxic, having adverse effects on both the environment 

and human health.  

CLIMATE CHANGE AND ENVIRONMENTAL IMPLICATIONS 

Commitment to our agreed Carbon Reduction Target of achieving net zero by 2040 will be crucial 

alongside the work of all other authorities, businesses and individuals in the global battle to reduce 

our carbon emissions and limit climate change to temperature increases of well below 2% in line 

with the Paris Agreement. Failure to do so would be catastrophic to the environment with extreme 

weather events expected to become more frequent and severe.  

At current levels, greenhouse gas emissions from the plastic lifecycle threaten our global 

commitment to the Paris Agreement. This Policy is therefore vital to ensure that we effectively 

manage our waste and reduce its impact. It is a global problem of which we can only make a small 

contribution, but we must seek to reduce our operational footprint as far as possible and manage 

our waste in a considered and environmentally conscientious manner.  

 

LINKS TO 12 MISSIONS IN THE LEVELLING UP WHITE PAPER  

MISSIONS 
This paper contributes to the follow Missions outlined in the Government’s Levelling Up White 

paper. 

Health The Sustainable Products Policy seeks to reduce pollution and 
contamination of the food web thereby reducing hazards to health across 
the sub-region 

Wellbeing The Sustainable Products Policy supports a more sustainable future for our 
operations which will lead to improved wellbeing for staff and ultimately 
residents.   

Local Leadership The Sustainable Products Policy highlights our commitment to meeting 
both our net zero targets and environmental aims, enhancing our 
reputation as a community leader and setting a positive example for others 
to follow. 

 

ACRONYMS 

None. 

APPENDICES 

Appendices are listed below and attached to the back of the report: - 

APPENDIX A Sustainable Products Policy 

 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 

Background papers used in the production of this report are listed below: - 

Document title Where the document can be viewed 

Page 32



Environment Policy https://www.mybostonuk.com/wp-

content/uploads/2021/02/Environment-Policy-

Boston.pdf  

Annual Delivery Plan  

 

CHRONOLOGICAL HISTORY OF THIS REPORT 

Name of body Date 

All Member Briefing  8th August 2022 

Cabinet Briefing  24th August 2022  

 

REPORT APPROVAL  

Report author: Heather Prescott  

Climate Change and Environment Officer 

Signed off by: Christian Allen 

Assistant Director Regulatory 

Approved for publication: Cllr P Skinner  

  

Page 33

https://www.mybostonuk.com/wp-content/uploads/2021/02/Environment-Policy-Boston.pdf
https://www.mybostonuk.com/wp-content/uploads/2021/02/Environment-Policy-Boston.pdf
https://www.mybostonuk.com/wp-content/uploads/2021/02/Environment-Policy-Boston.pdf


FINANCE PROFORMA 

PROFORMA FOR APPROVAL OF THE RELEASE OF RESOURCES 

(CAPITAL AND REVENUE BUDGETS) 

 

FROM:   

THIS PROFORMA PROVIDES THE FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 IN RESPECT OF THE ATTACHED 

     
REPORT:   
REPORT DATE:  
 

OPTION 1 £ Year 1 £ Year 2 £ Year 3 £ Year 4 £ Year 5 
 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 
Revenue      
      
      
      

Total Revenue Cost      

 
Funding required:   Considered by: Date: 
Total capital cost 
 

£  Enter committee here  

Revenue cost 
 

£  Enter Council or 
Cabinet/Executive here 

 

 
Financial Services Comments 
 
 
 
Risk 
 
 
 
Procurement 
 
 
Value for Money Efficiency 

 

 

 

 

 

This FP is valid for 3 months from 

FP date 

If this FP is no longer required please 

advise Finance 

If there are changes to the original report it 

may invalidate this document, it must be 

reviewed by Finance. 

   

 

Page 34



��
��

��
���

��
��
��
����
����

���
���

�������
�����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������

��
��
����

����
���
���
��
��

�
�
�
�

Sustainable Products Policy
SOUTH & EAST LINCOLNSHIRE COUNCILS PARTNERSHIP

P
age 35



2 SUSTAINABLE PRODUCTS POLICY

Background
The production of single use products and the resultant waste 
from their usage and disposal is one of the greatest environmental 
concerns we face globally today. All single use products have an 
environmental impact and are typically intended to be used just once 
or for a very short period of time before being disposed of, either by 
being thrown away or recycled. Single use products include items 
such as paper towels, cardboard drinks cups and toilet rolls.  

Some single use products such as envelopes are already widely 
recycled, however, they still have an environmental impact arising 
from production and recycling operations, which we should seek 
to minimise as far as possible. The Sustainable Products Policy 
seeks to reduce the usage of such items through education 
and communications which encourage the use of electronic 
communications and paper light methods of working.   

Single Use Plastics (SUPs), also known as disposable plastics are one 
of the biggest contributors to this environmental problem. They are 
products made wholly, or partly, of plastic and they include items 
such as plastic bags, packaging, drinks bottles, disposable gloves and 
wet wipes.

The Environment Act 2021 enables tougher action on single-use 
plastics in England including powers to place charges on single-use 
items and to consider the placing of charges on items such as single 
use cups or sachets to encourage a shift away from throwaway 
culture.

The UK is a global leader in combatting plastic waste and has already 
taken major steps to tackle plastic pollution, banning microbeads in 
rinse-off personal care products, and restricting the supply of single-
use plastic straws, stirrers and cotton buds.

Ph
ot

o 
by

 Ja
sm

in
 S

es
sle

r o
n 

U
ns

pl
as

h

P
age 36



3 SUSTAINABLE PRODUCTS POLICY

Our Commitment 
The Sustainable Products Policy sets out the South & East 
Lincolnshire Councils Partnership commitment to discontinuing the 
procurement of single use products within our internal operations, as 
far as possible and finding the best alternative solutions where single 
use products cannot be eliminated completely. This policy does not 
seek to strictly prohibit the purchase of single use items, however it 
addresses the need for the consequences of purchasing decisions to 
be carefully evaluated. 

This policy has been developed as a partnership document to 
ensure the widest influence possible across the sub region, in line 
with the strategic aims of the South and East Lincolnshire Council’s 
Partnership and the corporate priorities of the three Councils, seeking 
to ensure a sustainable approach to resource management. The 
implementation of this policy will ensure that as a community leader 
we set a positive example for others to follow. 

This commitment will be realised by embedding the Sustainable 
Products Policy in the procurement framework, establishing a culture 
of reuse/recycling, and switching to plastic-free alternatives where 
usage cannot be discontinued, ensuring that products are disposed of 
responsibly and appropriately by being recycled or composted. 

A comprehensive audit of single use products will be undertaken and 
will include the identification and potential financial implications of 
alternative products used both in offices and in Council services and 
operations. 

Alternative solutions to single use products should demonstrate best 
value both in financial and environmental terms, and the reasons 
for usage of these products should be ascertained and given due 
consideration. Where items are purchased for Health or Safety 
reasons, alternatives may not be viable. 

P
age 37



4 SUSTAINABLE PRODUCTS POLICY

The problem
The manufacture of single use products requires a large amount 
of energy and resources and largely includes the use of fossil fuels 
in their production processes. This is particularly the case for the 
manufacture of Single Use Plastic products which have wasteful 
production processes that are very resource intensive.

The extraction, production and refinement processes used all cause 
huge quantities of Greenhouse Gases to be emitted, meaning that 
their production is contributing to Climate Change, and they are 
often sent to landfill or take many years to decompose, causing 
air and water pollution. However, the focus tends to fall on SUPs 
because when these items are not adequately captured and managed 
at their end of life, they represent a serious threat to our ecosystems. 
They do not biodegrade but break down in the natural environment 
into tiny particles known as microplastics which pollute soils and 
watercourses, contaminating the food web and causing a hazard to 
wildlife. 

SUPs are also often difficult to recycle with current figures showing 
just 29 percent is currently recycled with that projected to increase 
to just 37 percent by 2030. 

Coastal regions such as Lincolnshire are particularly vulnerable to the 
effects of inappropriate waste disposal and the amount of litter on 
our beaches has almost doubled in the last 15 years posing a threat 
to humans and wildlife alike.¹ It is therefore crucial that we address 
this issue without delay. Whilst the issue of Single Use Product 
litter on our coast extends beyond our organisational remit, it is an 
important consideration when seeking to understand the wider local 
picture and act as a community leader who represents the concerns 
of the broader community.

¹https://www.lincstrust.org.uk/plastics. Ph
ot

o 
by

 P
ex

el
s.c

om
P

age 38



5 SUSTAINABLE PRODUCTS POLICY

The Solution
To tackle the problems surrounding single use waste we 
must first assess whether products are necessary in the first 
place and minimise the amount we use where possible. 

Where single-use items can’t be avoided we must 
make sustainable choices and promote responsible and 
appropriate disposal. Working towards a circular economy 
(the principle of remanufacture, reuse, repair, recycle) will 
see us keeping resources in use for as long as possible and 
allow us to prolong their lifespan where we can. 

The waste hierarchy shown should therefore be used as a 
guide when procuring goods and services.

���������������

����
���������

�����
���������

����������

��������������������

��������

��
����������

	�������P
age 39



6 SUSTAINABLE PRODUCTS POLICY

We will:
• Embed the Sustainable Products Policy in the procurement 

framework of the three Councils whilst ensuring that due 
consideration is given to the green credentials of companies 
during the tender process for membership of future procurement 
frameworks. 

• Discontinue procurement of single use products and switch to 
plastic-free alternatives where usage cannot be discontinued. 
Where plastic-free alternatives are not viable, other alternatives 
such as products made predominantly of recycled material or 
materials which can be easily recycled at the end of their life should 
be considered.

• Establish a culture of reuse/recycling and find the best alternative 
solutions where single use products cannot be eradicated 
completely, ensuring that those products are recycled or 
composted.

• Work with contractors and suppliers to find the most sustainable 
options available.

• Buy in bulk to reduce packaging.  

• Encourage and promote conscious and conscientious consumption 
across the partnership.

• Support community led schemes which promote recycling and 
reduction of single use waste where practicable. These schemes are 
often run on a small scale by volunteers e.g. Plastic Free Boston.

• Establish best practice and lead by example.

Next Steps:
• Undertake a full audit on the use of single use products. 

This will include the identification and potential financial 
implications of alternative products used both in offices and in 
Council services and operations. 

• Ensure the Councils’ Procurement Strategy incorporates the 
principles of sustainability and circular economy in line with 
this policy. 

• Ensure that recycling facilities in our buildings are well labelled, 
easy to access, and that staff and customers are informed of 
their location and understand how to use them. It is recognised 
that many of the proposed changes to our Procurement 
processes will take time to achieve and promotion of recycling 
schemes across our facilities will therefore ensure that the 
impact of Single Use Products are addressed at every stage of 
the product lifecycle, providing an interim solution while other 
operational alternatives are investigated.

• Investigate schemes such as the Terracycle scheme for soft-
plastics or Refill water stations which could be implemented in 
Council owned buildings 

P
age 40



7 SUSTAINABLE PRODUCTS POLICY

P
age 41



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

 

 
 

REPORT TO: CABINET 

DATE: 7TH SEPTEMBER 2022 

SUBJECT: 

PURPOSE: 

QUARTER 1 REPORT – PERFORMANCE AND RISK 

KEY DECISION: 

PORTFOLIO HOLDERS: 

YES 

COUNCILLOR SKINNER – LEADER (PERFORMANCE) 

COUNCILLOR NOBLE – FINANCE & COMMERCIAL (RISK) 

REPORT AUTHORS: 

WARD(S) AFFECTED: 

SUZANNE ROLFE, INSIGHTS AND TRANSFORMATION MANAGER 

ALL 

EXEMPT REPORT? NO 

 

SUMMARY 

This is the quarterly report covering performance and risk monitoring information for Quarter 1 

of 2022/23 (as at June 2022). 

 

RECOMMENDATION 

1. To note the quarterly monitoring information for Q1 2022/23 

 

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 

Members are accountable for the delivery of the Council’s priorities and this monitoring 

information should be used as a tool to report on progress and highlight any key challenges 

forecast 

 

OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED 

Alternative reporting arrangements 

 

  

Page 43

Agenda Item 6



1. BACKGROUND 
 
1.1 A joint performance management framework has been agreed across the South & East 

Lincolnshire Councils Partnership for 2022/23 to support the delivery of services. 
 
1.2 Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) have been agreed to capture performance against the 

strategic priorities of the Partnership and the individual Councils. 
 
1.3 A combined performance report has been presented to Strategic Leadership Team (SLT) 

and this information has then been split out by Council for Executive reporting. 
 
1.4 This report presents the performance information for Boston Borough Council for Quarter 1 

of 2022/23 (as at June 2022).  
 
2. PERFORMANCE (APPENDIX A) 
 
2.1 In total there are 60 KPIs for Boston Borough Council. 23 are trend measures which will be 

more useful in future quarters when we can show trend over time. 
 
2.2 Of the 37 target measures, 25 are on or better than target, 2 are within tolerance, 7 are 

performing below target, 3 are not available at time of reporting. 
 
2.3 Performance on or better than target (green) or within tolerance (amber) in Q1 2022/23: 

• Percentage of cases opened at homelessness prevention stage (i.e., before they have 
become homeless) 

• Percentage of homelessness cases that were opened at homelessness prevention stage 
that resulted in the customer not becoming homeless 

• Number of families with children placed into Bed & Breakfast (B&B) for more than 6 
weeks 

• Land Charges - Average number of days taken to process Local Authority searches 

• Food Safety – percentage of rateable food businesses with a rating of 3 (generally 
satisfactory) or above as a Percentage of the total number of rateable food businesses. 

• Food Standards Agency Local Authority Food Safety Inspections Recovery Plan 
milestones achieved 

• Percentage of fly-tips collected within 3 working days of being reported 

• Percentage of subject requests responded to within statutory timescales 

• Percentage of major planning applications determined within 13/16 weeks (or agreed 
extended period) 

• Percentage of minor planning applications determined within 8 weeks (or agreed 
extended period) 

• Percentage of other planning applications determined within 8 weeks (or agreed 
extended period) 

• Percentage of major planning appeals allowed within the last 2 years (rolling period) 
against number of applications determined 

• Percentage of minor & other planning appeals allowed within the last 2 years (rolling 
period) against number of applications determined 

• Percentage of minor & other planning applications validated within 5 working days 
against total received 

• Percentage of major planning applications validated within 10 working days against 
total received 

• Occupancy Rate at end of Quarter: Industrial Units 
Page 44



• Occupancy Rate at end of Quarter: Other investment property 

• Percentage of commercial rent received against agreed budget 

• Percentage of commercial rent collected against that due 

• Percentage of Revenues & Benefits (R&B) Calls Answered 

• Percentage of Customer Contact (CC) Calls Answered 

• Combined Customer Satisfaction (Customer Contact) 

• Quality of Service (Customer Contact) 

• Average speed of answer – Revenue and Benefits 

• Percentage tax base vs Direct Debit Sign up 

• Business rate collection rate 

• Council tax collection rate 
 
2.4 Performance below target (red) in Q1 2022/23: 

• Percentage of corporate complaints responded to within corporately set timescales 

• Percentage of information requests responded to within statutory timescales 

• Percentage of all planning decisions that were subject to extensions of time in period 

• Percentage of car parking income received against agreed budget 

• Average speed of answer – Customer Contact 

• Time to process new Council Tax Support and Housing Benefit claims 

• Time to process Council Tax Support and Housing Benefit change events 
 
3. RISK MANAGEMENT (APPENDIX B) 
 
3.1 The strategic risk register is included which has been reviewed and signed off by SLT, 

including review of comments from Audit & Governance Committee at their last meeting. 
 
 
CONCLUSION 
Overall, performance in Q1 of 2022/23 is in line with targets and remedial action is in place where 

required. 

Strategic and operational risks continue to be managed in accordance with the Risk Management 

Framework. 

 

EXPECTED BENEFITS TO THE PARTNERSHIP 
A Partnership approach has been agreed for 2022/23. 

 

IMPLICATIONS 
 
SOUTH AND EAST LINCOLNSHIRE COUNCIL’S PARTNERSHIP 
A Partnership approach has been agreed for 2022/23. 

 
CORPORATE PRIORITIES 
Whole report. 

 
  

Page 45



STAFFING 
None specific to this report. 

 
CONSTITUTIONAL AND LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
None specific to this report. 

 
DATA PROTECTION 
None specific to this report. 

 
FINANCIAL 
None specific to this report. 

 
RISK MANAGEMENT 
Section 3 of the report and Appendix B. 

 
STAKEHOLDER / CONSULTATION / TIMESCALES 
Consultation with SLT 

 
REPUTATION 
None specific to this report. 

 
CONTRACTS 
None specific to this report. 

 
CRIME AND DISORDER 
None specific to this report. 

 
EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY/ HUMAN RIGHTS/ SAFEGUARDING 
None specific to this report. 

 
HEALTH AND WELL BEING 
None specific to this report. 

 
CLIMATE CHANGE AND ENVIRONMENTAL IMPLICATIONS 
None specific to this report. 

 
ACRONYMS 

• B&B: Bed & Breakfast accommodation 

• CC: Customer Contact 

• DD: Direct Debit 

• KPIs: Key Performance Indicators 

• NDR: Non-domestic rates (business rates) 

• R&B: Revenues & Benefits 

• SLT: Strategic Leadership Team 
Page 46



 
 

APPENDICES 
Appendices are listed below and attached to the back of the report: - 

APPENDIX A Q1 performance 

APPENDIX B Q1 risks 

 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
No background papers as defined in Section 100D of the Local Government Act 1972 were used 
in the production of this report. 

 

CHRONOLOGICAL HISTORY OF THIS REPORT 
A report on this item has not been previously considered by a Council body 

 

REPORT APPROVAL  

Report author: Suzanne Rolfe, suzanne.rolfe@boston.gov.uk     

Signed off by: James Gilbert, james.gilbert@e-lindsey.gov.uk   

Approved for publication: Cllr Paul Skinner & Cllr Jonathan Noble 

 

Page 47

mailto:suzanne.rolfe@boston.gov.uk
mailto:james.gilbert@e-lindsey.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Quarter 1 2022/23 Performance Report 
 

 

For 2022/23 the number of KPIs for each council is as follows: 

Boston Borough Council: 60 KPIs, of which 23 are trend only. 

Additionally, there are still finance KPIs to be added once the finance SLA has been approved with PSPS.   

Where explanatory commentary has been received for under performance or missing KPI data, this is included below the relevant KPI in the report below. 

The charts breakdown all KPIs, showing the total number that are above target, within tolerance, below target, trend only and those that have not reported data for 

Quarter 1, 2022/23. 

KPIs that are not due to report until year end, or where the KPIs have not been finalised, have been removed from this report pending a final decision. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

25

2
7

23

3

Boston Q1 KPI Overview

Green Amber Red Trend Only Missing Data

P
age 49



Boston: Wellbeing and Community Leadership 

KPIs 2022/23 Target Performance Status 

Percentage of cases opened at homelessness prevention stage (i.e., before they have become homeless) 70% 67.00% K 

Commentary: BBC Performance has fallen slightly below target. The Service Manager will review why performance has decreased slightly. 

Percentage of homelessness cases that were opened at homelessness prevention stage that resulted in the customer not 
becoming homeless 

70% 73.00% J 

Number of verified rough sleepers  0 21 Tr 

Commentary: Significant number of people found in derelict buildings in Boston many of whom are not eligible for assistance. The team continue to provide advice and 
support to all rough sleepers including those who are ineligible for assistance. 

Number of families with children placed into B&B for more than 6 weeks 0 0 J 

Number of properties improved through Council intervention Tr 13 Tr 

 

Boston: Regulatory 

Land Charges - Average number of days taken to process Local Authority searches (working days) 10 5.22 J 

Food Safety – percentage of rateable food businesses with a rating of 3 (generally satisfactory) or above as a Percentage of the 
total number of rateable food businesses. 

98% 98.92% J 

Food Standards Agency Local Authority Food Safety Inspections Recovery Plan milestones achieved 100% 100% J 

 

Boston: Leisure and Culture 

Visitor numbers / number of tickets sold, by venue Tr Geoff Moulder 54,765            Tr 

Number of swims Tr Geoff Moulder 27,173            Tr 

Number of swimming lessons Tr Geoff Moulder 8,125            Tr 

Number of gym members Tr Geoff Moulder 1,379            Tr 

Customer satisfaction, by venue / service area Tr data not available Tr 

Market stall occupancy rate  Tr 61.40% Tr 

Commentary: Saturday Market Place occupancy averaged 62.64% in Quarter 1. Wednesday Market and The Green averaged 70.18% and 51.38% respectively. 

 

 

P
age 50



Boston: Neighbourhoods 

Percentage of household waste collected for recycling and composting - annual measure 45%     

Commentary: Data not currently available. 

Percentage of recycling collected that is contaminated and unable to be recycled 20%     

Commentary: Data not currently available. BBC data from county does not match sampling done by waste team locally. This is being investigated. 

Number of requests for waste re-collection per 100,000 collections Tr     

Commentary: Data not currently available. 

Percentage of fly-tips collected within 3 working days of being reported - BBC 95%  96.59%   

 

Boston: Corporate 

Percentage of Partnership workforces (surveyed collectively) who said ‘Yes’ when asked if they felt valued at work? Tr 69.00% Tr 

Percentage of the Partnership workforces (surveyed collectively) who said ‘yes’ they feel there are opportunities in the 
Partnership to learn and develop their skills and expertise 

Tr 77.00% Tr 

Percentage of the Partnership workforces (surveyed collectively) who said ‘yes’ they feel the Partnership recognises and 
supports positive mental health in the workplace 

Tr 75.00% Tr 

Percentage of the Partnership workforces (surveyed collectively) who feel informed about the Partnership and what decisions 
it is making 

Tr 44.00% Tr 

Staff Turnover (Percentage) Tr 2% Tr 

Number of working days lost to sickness per FTE Tr 2.18 Tr 

 

Boston: Governance 

Percentage of corporate complaints responded to within corporately set timescales 95% 75.00% L 

Commentary: Boston has a low conversion of first contact to stage 1 & 2 (69 1st contact resulting in 4 progressing, of which 1 falls into mandatory monthly responses 
affecting performance stats.)  

Percentage of subject requests responded to within statutory timescales 100% 100.00% J 

Percentage of information requests responded to within statutory timescales 100% 92.00% L 

Commentary: Delays in operation department responses driven by workload. SLT have now required visibility to address for Q2. 

Number of instances where service areas have failed to notify the DPO promptly of any identified data breaches Tr 2 Tr 

Number of late reports not made available to the DEMS teams at agenda publication Tr 4 Tr 

Percentage registering to vote by telephone/online v paper Tr 69% Tr 

 

P
age 51



 

Boston: Economic Growth and Strategic Growth and Development 

Inward Investment: number of events attended/hosted Tr 3 Tr 

Inward Investment: enquiries/leads responded to Tr 5 Tr 

Inward Investment: jobs created/new businesses Tr 0 Tr 

Inward Investment: external funding achieved  Tr 0 Tr 

 

Boston: Planning and Strategic Infrastructure 

Percentage of major planning applications determined within 13/16 weeks (or agreed extended period) 65% 100.00% J 

Percentage of minor planning applications determined within 8 weeks (or agreed extended period) 75% 85.70% J 

Percentage of other planning applications determined within 8 weeks (or agreed extended period) 75% 96.30% J 

Percentage of all planning decisions that were subject to extensions of time in period 30% 53.10% L 

Commentary: The number of applications subject to Extensions of Time agreements is higher than that which we aim for. However, this is reflective of several older 

applications reaching a point where a decision can be issued (i.e., amendments received and agreed, Legal Agreements finalised). It is expected that we will see this 

return closer to 30% over upcoming Quarters. Recent recruitment to fill vacant posts and complete our staffing structure puts the Boston planning team in a strong 

position going forwards in terms of resource. 

Percentage of decisions (major / minor / others) taken under delegation within period Tr 98.9 Tr 

Percentage of major planning appeals allowed within last 2 years (rolling period) against number of applications determined 10% 0.00% J 

Percentage of minor & other planning appeals allowed within the last 2 years (rolling period) against number of applications 
determined 

10% 0.70% J 

Percentage of minor & other planning applications validated within 5 working days against total received 90% 98.80% J 

Percentage of major planning applications validated within 10 working days against total received 90% 100.00% J 

 

Boston: General Fund Assets 

Occupancy Rate at end of Quarter: Industrial Units 90% 100.00% J 

Occupancy Rate at end of Quarter: Other investment property 95% 100.00% J 

Percentage of car parking income received against agreed budget 100% 84.03% L 

Commentary: This figure does not take into account any delay associated with parking income paid by card which are delayed against this ledger figure. 

Percentage of commercial rent received against agreed budget 100% 104.71% J 

Percentage of commercial rent collected against that due 93% 103.52% J 

Repairs & Maintenance: Percentage committed spend against budget Tr -6% Tr 

P
age 52



 

Boston: PSPS 

Business rate collection rate (Percentage) (Cumulative) 33% 33.73% J 

Council tax collection rate (Percentage) (Cumulative) 26% 26.30% J 

Time to process new Council Tax Support and Housing Benefit claims (days) 22 35.31 L 

Commentary: Speed of processing both new claims and changes have been outside of target and tolerance levels in Quarter 1.  

The benefits team continues to face challenges with extremely high volumes of work incoming, and there will need to be some focus. The services continue to prioritise 
activity, and workload and performance is under close management scrutiny. 

Following the end of the Test and Trace Support scheme in May, a number of staff are being reintegrated and retrained in core benefits processing work.  In addition, we 
have retained third party resilience resources to support the increased workloads, and planned overtime is ongoing. Targeting of work includes focus on drawing in the 
oldest work, which will help to reduce the risk of administration delay and LA Error but as old work is cleared it will continue to adversely affect speed of processing. A 
new recruitment initiative is being developed to attract people into the service, and new recruits are undergoing training.  The additional non-core work across the service 
continues to impact on capacity and performance, and this will continue for several months, however during this time we will prioritise resources and activities 
appropriately. 

Time to process Council Tax Support and Housing Benefit change events (days) 9 11.6 L 

Commentary: As above 

Percentage of Revenues & Benefits Calls Answered 90% 92.55% J 

Percentage of CC Calls Answered 90% 86.62% K 

Combined Customer Satisfaction - Monthly 90% 94.82% J 

Quality of Service - Combined 90% 97.20%  J 

Average speed of answer - CC (Seconds) 120 170.33 L 

Commentary: Generally, customer contact performance is improving when compared to the acute performance challenges experienced in 2021/22, but there are still 
challenges to contend with. Overall challenges with the quarterly data relate primarily with lower performance scores in April, which can in many ways be attributed to 
the traditional year end related spikes in demand. It is pleasing to note strong performance across all customer contact indicators in June, with no indicators falling below 
tolerance levels, and this suggests an upward trend. Against an average speed of answer target of 120s, June data shows answer rates at 58s (BBC). 

The Customer Contact team are continuing to deal with additional demands in addition to the usual anticipated calls. In June they received an additional 4,331 calls 
relating to the £150 energy rebate, which are being diverted to dedicated staff. 

The performance in Q1 this year has seen an additional 6 green KPI indicators compared with Q1 2021/22. 

Average speed of answer – Revenue and Benefits (Seconds) 240 113 J 

Percentage tax base vs DD Sign up 60% 70.41% J 

 

P
age 53



T
his page is intentionally left blank



(4B) Copy of Appendix B BBC Q1 Strategic Risks

Likelihood Impact Overall risk

1 Economic hardship

AD
: W

el
lb

ei
ng

 &
 C

om
m

un
ity

Le
ad

er
sh

ip

The risk of economic hardship to local
people

Increase in wholesale energy costs;
Supply chain issues;
Continuing impact of Covid-19;
High rents and low wages;
Housing supply, affordable housing and
standards issues;
Inflation;
Fuel shortages;
Ukraine conflict

Economic hardship;
Fuel poverty;
Poor housing;
Homelessness;
Isolation and lack of opportunities.

Taking action to improve housing
standards;
Working with local landlords;
Support to local people on budgeting,
training and jobs;
Political pressure on the government to
address fuel bills nationally;
Campus for Future Living;
Investment into Leisure/Learning/Well-
being projects.

3 4 High (12)

2 Health

AD
: W

el
lb

ei
ng

 &
 C

om
m

un
ity

Le
ad

er
sh

ip The risk of long term health issues on
local people; the opportunity to work
with health partners to address these

Long term health issues in the local
population;
Deprivation;
Local perceptions;
Apathy.

Poor health outcomes;
Increased costs to local health services;
Unsustainable health services.

The opportunity to work with health
partners to address long term health
issues and deprivation, to raise
awareness and promote good health, to
support the sustainability of local health
services

3 3 Medium (9)

3 Local economy

AD
: E

co
no

m
ic

 G
ro

w
th

Risk to local businesses, lack of growth,
lack of inward investment and tourism;
opportunity to encourage growth and
stimulate the local economy; good
community relations

Continuing impact of Covid-19 on
businesses and the local economy;
Increasing costs, including fuel costs;
Lack of buses, particularly in rural areas,
and increasing costs of travel

Struggling/failing local businesses;
Stagnating local economy;
Lack of inward investment;
Low skills and aspirations;
Low visitor numbers;
Future sustainability of the Town Centre
- retail, evening economy, housing,
heritage, culture, leisure, events, car
parking;
Community perceptions.

Town Deal and Levelling Up projects;
UK Shared Prosperity;
ACE funding applications;
Vital & Viable programme;
Partnership working for sector support
(heritage, culture, leisure and visitor
economy).

3 3 Medium (9)

4 Sustainability

AD
: R

eg
ul

at
or

y

Risk to the environment and future
sustainability

Carbon emissions;
Climate challenge;
Need to find the balance between
sustainability and pay back;
Need to find the balance between
education and enforcement.

Impact on future sustainability;
Impact on value for money;
Reputational risk of failing to lead by
example.

Carbon Reduction Action Plan approved.
Climate Change Strategy approved.
Green Home Grants are in delivery.

2 3 Medium (6)

5
Environmental
crime AD

:
N

ei
gh

bo
ur

ho
od

s

Impact of environmental crime (fly
tipping and littering) on local people,
the local area and the reputation of the
Council

Residents, visitors and businesses failing
to dispose of litter and waste
responsibly, using litter bins, the
Household Waste Recycling Centre or
waste collection companies.

Increase in fly tipping and littering
Education and enforcement;
Partnership working, including with
community groups

3 3 Medium (9)

Mitigation: existing control measures in
place

Risk score

Re
f

Risk name Ri
sk

ow
ne

r

Description Cause/s Potential impact and consequences

P
age 55



(4B) Copy of Appendix B BBC Q1 Strategic Risks

Likelihood Impact Overall risk

Mitigation: existing control measures in
place

Risk score

Re
f

Risk name Ri
sk

ow
ne

r

Description Cause/s Potential impact and consequences

6 Budget
AD

: F
in

an
ce Risk around the long term balancing of

the budget with economic and funding
uncertainty

Reduction of government funding;
Reduction in income;
Capital expenditure;
Impact of Internal Drainage Board (IDB)
levy;
Inflation;
Fuel shortages;
Ukraine conflict

Lack of money and lack of certainty
going forward;
Failure to balance budget in future years

Medium Term Financial Strategy;
Budgetary process;
Sound level of reserves;
Continued close monitoring;
Funding applications.

3 5 High (15)

7 Service delivery

AD
: C

or
po

ra
te

Risks to service delivery

Capacity, workload and resilience;
Recruitment and retention;
Uncertainty around Local Government
Reorganisation (LGR);
Compliance failure (audit, health &
safety, safeguarding, information
governance and management, legal);
Technical infrastructure failure;
Cyber incident;
Negative press;
Effects of change and how it affects
both officers and elected Members.

Failure in service delivery;
Impact on local people;
Impact on staff;
Impact on budget;
Reputational damage;
Failure of third party service delivery;
Contract failure.

Staff resources maximised under the
Partnership;
Working with external partners to
deliver shared priorities;
HR support on recruitment and
retention;
Training plans;
Values & behaviours work;
Annual Delivery Plan, Workforce
Development, policies and procedures.

3 3 Medium (9)

8
Civil contingency
risks

AD
: R

eg
ul

at
or

y

Community risks shared across
Lincolnshire, managed in partnership
with the Lincolnshire Resilience Forum
(LRF)

Impact of Covid19;
Influenza type disease;
East coast flooding;
Inland flooding;
Severe weather;
Fuel shortages;
Loss of critical infrastructure;
Animal disease;
Environmental pollution and industrial
accidents;
Transport accidents;
Business Continuity incident.

Failure in service delivery;
Impact on local people;
Reputational damage;
Detrimental economic impact on
business.

Community Risk Register monitored by
the Lincolnshire Resilience Forum (LRF);
Work with partners to assess, monitor
and plan for these risks together.
Exercising of plans and training of staff.

2 4 Medium (8)

9 Infrastructure risks

AD
: E

co
no

m
ic

Gr
ow

th Risks to infrastructure - roads, rail,
waste management, water supply,
energy, digital connectivity

Lack of  investment, upgrade and
development into infrastructure,
broadband/digital connectivity,
highways/public transport;
Increased demand on infrastructure
from population growth and rapid
urbanisation

Impact on health, the economy and
businesses;
Opportunity to generate employment
and boost living standards;
Opportunity to encourage inward
investment.

Sub-regional focus and briefings;
Support with the evolution of ideas and
solutions;
Scrutiny Committee looking at the
theme of highways/public transport.

2 4 Medium (8)

P
age 56



Final Risk scoring Colour
Minimal Risk
Low Risk
Medium Risk
High Risk
Critical Risk

Minimal 1 2 3 4 5

Rare Unlikely Possible Likely
Almost
certain

Low 2 4 6 6

6 9 12 15

Likelihood

10

Risk Scoring Matrix
Im

pa
ct

Critical 5 10 15 20 25

High 4 8 12 16 20

Medium 3

P
age 57



(4B) Copy of Appendix B BBC Q1 Strategic Risks

For reference, the category definitions are set out below:

Impact score 1 2 3 4 5

Title Minimal Low Medium High Critical

Political risk
Residents unaware
of authority’s actions

Residents’ access to
oppose actions
limited

Residents’ access to
oppose actions
process blocked

Authority fails to
effectively scrutinise
its actions

No scrutiny of
actions takes place

Reputation risk
Increased complaints
for less than one
week

Increased complaints
for more than one
week

Negative local press
coverage for one
day, increased
complaints for more
than one week

Negative national
press coverage for
one day, ongoing
negative local
coverage

Negative national
press coverage over
several days. Public
criticism from MP,
LGA, County Council
or national service
body

Financial risk
Up to 1% of project
budget

Up to 5% of project
budget

Up to 10% of project
budget

Up to 15% of project
budget

Over 15% of project
budget

Legal risk
Delays due to legal
clarifications being
sought (<1 month)

Delays due to legal
clarifications being
sought (1-6 months)

Delays due to legal
clarifications being
sought (>6 months)

Project operations
potentially subject to
legal challenge,
project on hold until
resolved

Project operations
potentially in breach
of legislation, project
terminated

Disruption risk
Individual members
of staff having work
disrupted

Multiple members of
staff unable to work

Total service outage
for one day or less

Total service outage
for several days

Total service outage
for more than a week

Environmental risk
Immediately
remedied damage in
an isolated area

Easily remedied
damage in an
isolated area

Short term damage
in an isolated area
requiring partners
assistance

Damage requiring
special budget
provision to rectify

Major or widespread
damage requiring
central government
assistance

Contractual risk
Negative impact on
key partner
relationship

Minor contract
renegotiation
required

Major contract
renegotiation
required

Project aims or goal
significantly altered
or sanction clauses
invoked

Project failure and/or
termination of
contract

Asset &
Infrastructure risk

Individual pieces of
equipment damaged
or needing
replacement

Isolated network
issues, multiple
pieces of equipment
needing replacement

Widespread network
issues, vehicle
damaged

Council properties
inaccessible, vehicle
need replacing

Council properties
damaged, multiple
vehicles need
replacing, key
infrastructure outage

Health and Safety
risk

People engaging in
hazardous activities
without awareness

Individual receives
minor injuries

Multiple people
receive minor
injuries

Individual serious
injury

Multiple people
seriously injured,
individual loss of life

Page 58



(4B) Copy of Appendix B BBC Q1 Strategic Risks

Likelihood score 1 2 3 4 5
Definition Rare Unlikely Possible Likely Almost certain

Description

The likelihood of the
risk has been
minimised to a
negligible possibility

The risk is technically
possible but an
occurrence is not
foreseeable in the
medium-long term

The risk is a real
possibility but the
likelihood of an
occurrence in the
short-medium term
is small

The risk is probably
going to occur at
some point in the
medium term--,
possibly sooner

The risk is probably
going to occur
imminently

Timeframe
Will occur at some
point in next 50
years

Will occur at some
point in the next 25
years

Will occur at some
point in the next 10
years

Will occur at some
point in the next 5
years

Will occur at some
point in the next year

Probability 10% or less Between 10-30% Between 30-50% Between 50-85% 85% or more

Risk appetite
Minimal: Avoidance of risk and uncertainty; minimal exposure to risk preferred; consequently likely to be low potential for reward / achieving a stretching objective;
corresponding risk score = low

Cautious: Preference for safe options with low to medium risk; consequently reduced potential for reward / achieving a stretching objective; tight controls in place;
corresponding risk score = low to medium

Creative and aware: Willing to consider all potential options and choose the one most likely to achieve the objective, while also providing an acceptable level of reward and value for money;
balanced approach recognising that things may go wrong but we will learn from them; corresponding risk score = medium

Seek: Eager to be innovative and to choose options offering potentially higher rewards, despite greater inherent risk;
willing to tolerate uncertainty and accept possibility of significant loss; corresponding risk score = high

Page 59



This page is intentionally left blank



1 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 

REPORT TO: Cabinet 

DATE: 7th September 2022 

SUBJECT: Quarter 1 (Q1) Finance Report 2022/23  

KEY DECISION: 

  

PORTFOLIO HOLDER: 

N/A 

 

Councillor Noble 

REPORT AUTHOR: 

 

WARD(S) AFFECTED: 

Chris Ayriss (Strategic Finance Manager PSPS) and Laz Mafuko 

(Deputy Chief Finance Officer (Client) PSPS) 

N/A 

EXEMPT REPORT? No 

 

SUMMARY 

This report sets out the forecast at the end of quarter one 2022/23 for Boston Borough Council  

and provides information on r the Council’s revenue, capital, treasury, reserves and balances 

position,. 

 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS 
That Cabinet: 

1 Notes the detail set out in the report and the forecast deficit position of £299,414 (taking 
into account potential full year implications of certain variances) at the end of the first 
quarter of 2022/23 as shown in Table 1. 

 

 

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 

To ensure the Council’s forecast financial position for 2022/23 is considered and related 

decisions approved. It is important that the Executive are aware of the financial position of the 

Page 61

Agenda Item 7



2 
 

General Fund to ensure that they can make informed decisions that are affordable and 

financially sustainable for the Council. 

 

OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED 

To not approve the reserve movements outlined. 

 

REPORT 

BACKGROUND 
 
Since the pandemic, the Council has seen various impacts on its finances, increased expenditure in 
the short-term dealing with the response to the situation, including the dispersal of significant 
government grants to businesses/individuals and longer-term effects on its income, finances 
generally and a significant impact on commercial activities.  
 
Inflation rates have continued to rise throughout the first quarter of 2022/23: RPI was 12.3% at the 
end of July. Interest rates have also risen, notably the BOE base rate was 1.75% at 4 August 2022.  
 
Throughout the year, quarterly monitoring reports are completed forecasting the expected year 
end out-turn against the budgets.  This report provides a summary on the potential full year 
outturn at the end of quarter one (30 June 2022), in the Appendix, for the following areas: 
 

• The General Fund Revenue Budget, 

• The General Fund Reserves Position, 

• The Capital Outturn for 2022/23, and 

• High level Treasury Management Performance for the year. 
 
In the attached Appendix A, specific detail is provided in respect of the following areas: 
 
General Fund Forecast Outturn 
 
The forecast outturn position by Assistant Director is detailed at Table 1 together with an analysis 
of service variations. Net spend by Assistant Directors for 2022/23 was reported to be £9,081K 
which is £361K above the budgeted figure. The variances are explained in Table 1. 
 
These pressures mainly relate to income (continued covid impacts) and fuel. Members will recall 
the Council set aside a reserve to deal with covid impacts and this has a balance of £851,000 which 
can be used to deal with this implications should they fully materialise by the year end as is 
currently being forecast. Officers continue to look at opportunities for mitigating these impacts on 
the Councils budget. 
 
In addition, an efficiency and savings target of £282,000 is embedded within the Councils budget 
and a full report on progress with identifying and implementing any opportunities that have been 
identified will be detailed in the Councils Q2 report. 
 
 

Page 62



3 
 

Reserves  
 
General Fund Specific Reserves have seen a reduction in balances of £5.182m. Further specific 
details are set out in Appendix A – Table 3 with associated narrative. 
 
The General Fund Reserve Balance remains at £2.000m. 
 
Capital – General Fund 
 
The total revised General Fund Capital programme for 2022/23 is £10.312m, detailed in in Table 4 
of Appendix A. 
 
 
Treasury Management 
 
Section 2.4 provides details of the Council’s Treasury Investments, the outturn for investment 
income for 2022/23 is anticipated to be £62k above the budget based on current investments 
compared to performance in Quarter 1 as estimated at £2k below profiled budget.   
 
The Council has external loans held with Public Works Loans Board totalling £20m. Interest costs 
on this external borrowing will be £382K for 2022/23. 
 
CONCLUSION 
 

 There continues to be significant challenges for the Councils budgets looking forward particularly 

around income, plus new pressues around fuel, power and pay. The Council has set aside funds to 

deal with any requirement for a prolonged recovery period, savings and efficiencies continue to be 

an area of focus for officers for this and future years. 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
As contained in Appendix A 
 

 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

None 

 

CLIMATE CHANGE AND ENVIRONMENTAL IMPLICATIONS 

None 

 

 

EQUALITY AND SAFEGUARDING IMPLICATIONS 

Page 63



4 
 

None 

 

OTHER IMPLICATIONS 

None 

 

 

APPENDICES 

None 

 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 

 

Background papers used in the production of this report are listed below: - 

Document title Where the document can be viewed 

Q4 Finance Report Cabinet 30th March 2022 Agenda 

 

  

CONSULTATION 

None 

Page 64



5 
 

 

CHRONOLOGICAL HISTORY OF THIS REPORT 

 

Name of body Date 

  

  

 

REPORT APPROVAL  

Report author: Chris Ayriss, Interim Strategic Finance Manager, 

PSPS and Laz Mafuko, Interim Deputy Chief Finance 

Officer (Client), PSPS 

Signed off by: Samantha Knowles, Assistant Director Finance 

Approved for publication: Councillor Richard Noble Portfolio Holder for 

Finance 

 

 

Page 65



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX A 

Boston Borough Council – Q1 Finance Report 2022/23 
 
Finance Summary 

• The revenue outturn shows a deficit position of £299k 

• Specific and general reserves of the Council are forecast to be £13.431m at 31 March 2023. 

• Capital spend at the end of Quarter 1 was £0.621m against a full year budget of £10.312m 

• An efficiency target of £282,000 is included in the budgets for 2022/23 

• After funding the 2022/23 Capital Programme the capital resources are: 
o Capital Reserve - £4.126m 
o Capital Receipts - £2.398m 

• The Council held investments of £31.3m as at 30 June 2022. 

 

Section 2 – Finance 

Section 2.1 Key Financial Issues in Quarter 1 of 2022/23 
Section 2.2 Revenue Budget 
Section 2.3 Capital Budget 
Section 2.4 Treasury Update 
Section 2.5 Insurance 
Section 2.6 Debt Collection 
Section 2.7 Business Rates and Council Tax Collection 
  

 

Section 2.1 – Key Financial Issues in Quarter 1 of 2022/23 

• On 23rd March the Department for Levelling Up, Housing & Communities published a prospectus providing 

guidance on submitting bids for local areas. The £4.8 billion fund will support town centre and high street 

regeneration, local transport projects, and cultural and heritage assets. Bidding to be held open until 2nd 

August. 

• On 11th May, the Department for Levelling up, Housing & Communities published a press release New Bill to 

level up the nation. Government introduces plans to transform struggling towns and cities, supporting local 

leaders to take back control of regeneration. Levelling Up Missions, such as eradicating child illiteracy and 

closing gaps in life expectancy and living standards, to be enshrined by Law. 

Local communities get extra power to tackle scourge of boarded up shops and empty homes. Legislation to 

underpin biggest shift of power from Whitehall in modern times. 

• On 11th June, the Department for Levelling up, Housing & Communities published a press release stating that 

Communities across the UK can bid for Levelling Up funds to save pubs, clubs and historic buildings. Groups 

will be able to bid for a share of the government’s £150 million Community Ownership Fund to rescue 

cultural buildings in their area that would otherwise be lost forever. Eligibility criteria has been expanded so 

more community groups can apply for funding, supporting more local economies to grow. 

• On 21st July HM Treasury announced via press release of potential grant funding for councils to remove 

barriers to redevelop land and promote regeneration for communities, to transform underused and derelict 

sites. This grant will help councils build new homes and business on those sites – delivering more homes, 

and regenerating towns and cities. 

 

 
Inflation 

April (%) May (%) June (%) 

CPI 9.0 9.1 9.4 

RPI 11.1 11.7 11.8 
 Page 67



APPENDIX A 
Section 2.2 – Revenue Budget 

Table 1 details the outturn by Assistant Director.  This shows an overspend position of £299k.  

Table 1 – Net Spend by Assistant Director 

Assistant Director Area 

Revised 
Budget 

2022/23 
 

£’000 

Outturn 
2022/23 

 
£’000 

Variance 
(underspend)/ 

overspend 
  

£’000 

Comments on main variances 

Corporate 2,187 2,187 0  

Economic Growth 125 125 0  

Finance 2,025 2,025 0  

Governance 662 662 0  

General Fund Assets (1,297) (1,228) 69 
Bereavement Inc £21k, Building 
Maintenance Inc (£3k), Parking Inc 
£26k, Electricity and Gas £25k 

Leisure and Culture 473 674 201 

Reduction in projected Leisure Income 
at Q1 of £197k, with no sign of 
improving through the year with the 
cost of living crisis compounding the 
matter, this is being regularly 
monitored, as a result of a fall off in 
admissions and monthly fees. Markets 
£5k,* 

Neighbourhoods 1,786 1,877 91 
Increased Recycling & Refuse fuel costs 
£67k as an inflationary impact. Vehicle 
Maintenance Contract £25k 

Planning & Strategic 
Infrastructure 

220 220 0  

Regulatory 486 486 0  

Wellbeing and 
Community Leadership 

1,320 1,320 0  

BTAC 733 733 0  

Sub Total – Assistant 
Director – net costs 

8,719 9,081 361  

Internal Drainage 
Boards/Parish Precepts 

2,623 2,623 0  

DRF 1,888 1,888 0  

MRP 15 15 0  

Interest Payments 
Received / Return on 
Property Funds 

(517) (579) (62) 
Additional investment Income 
estimated at (£62k) based on current 
estimates. 

Reserves (5,182) (5,182) 0  

Non Service 
Expenditure 

(1,173) (1,235) (62)  

Total Expenditure 7,547 7,846 299  

Council Tax (5,360) (5,360) 0  

Business Rates 1,249 1,249 0  

Non Ring Fenced 
Government Grant 

(3,436) (3,436) 0  

Total Funding (7,547) (7,547) 0  

Total Budget -  
(Surplus)/Deficit 

0 299 299  

*This denotes a full year projection 

 Page 68



APPENDIX A 

Recommendation: 
F1 That Cabinet notes the revenue outturn position for 2022/23 as detailed in Table 1  

Additional revenue budget notes 

Income 

The Council has a number of demand-led budget areas which are reliant on income for services provided. 

Table 2 – Trading Income Budgets 

Income Area 
Revised 

Budget to 30 
June 2022 

 
£’000 

Actual 
Income to 

30 June 
2022 

 
£’000 

 
 

Variance 
(above)/ 

below 
budget 

 
£’000 

Comments 

GF - Car Parking, 
Bereavement, and Property  

(1,930) (1,886) 44 Parking Income is forecast at £26k 
lower than budgeted, maintenance 
income higher than expected (£3k). 
Bereavement income is  overall 
£21k lower than anticipated.  

Leisure Pool, and Markets 

(1,017) (816) 201 

Leisure Pool has a forecast of a 
£197k shortfall in income, with the 
current climate proving to be a 
challenge to return to pre-covid 
levels. Markets experiencing a £5k 
shortfall.* 

Neighbourhoods – Office 
Cleaning, Recycling (1,004) (1,004) 0  

 

Development Management 
(633) (633) 0 

 

Regulatory – Land Charges, 
Licences (391) (391) 0 

 

Bed & Breakfast 

(44) (44) 0  

A higher usage of Bed &Breakfast 
facilities during Quarter 1, close 
monitoring required due to 
demand. 

Total (5,019) (4,774) 245  

Page 69



APPENDIX A 
Reserves 

At 30 June 2022 specific reserves are forecast to be £11.431 m, after a net transfer from reserves of £5.182m in 

Quarter 4 to cover revenue and capital expenditure.  Table 3 reflects the outturn position. 

Table 3 – Specific and General Reserves Balance 

Reserve 
Balances at 1 April 

2022 
£’000 

Contributions into 
Reserves 
£’000 

Use of Reserves 
 

£’000 

Balances at 31 
March 2023 

£’000 

Capital Funding 5,626 333 (1,833) 4,126 

Transformation 1,457 32 (198) 1,291 

Repairs and 
Renewals 

697 35 - 732 

ICT 88 - (70) 18 

Housing 1,513 75 (55) 1,533 

Controlling 
Migration 

14 - - 14 

Insurance 260 - - 260 

Property Fund 
Returns Risk 
Mitigation 

1,116 - - 1,116 

Funding Volatility 4,991 - (3,501) 1,490 

Covid 19 851 - - 851 

Specific Reserves 
Total 

16,613 475 (5,657) 11,431 

General Fund 2,000 - - 2,000 

Total 18,613 475 (5,657) 13,431 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 70



APPENDIX A 
Section 2.3 – Capital Budget 

This section covers: 

• Revisions to the Capital Programme 

• Progress against the 2022/23 approved capital programme and the anticipated outturn 

• Financing of the Capital Programme 

Table 4 – 2022/23 Capital Programme and Q1 Forecast Outturn 

Scheme Approved 
Budget 

2022/23 
 

£000 

Actual 
30 Jun 
 2022 

 
£000 

Forecast 
Outturn 
2022/23 

 
£000 

Variance 
(under)/over  

 
 

£000 

Disabled Facilities Grants 451 40 451 - 

Housing Strategy 56 - 56 - 

Resurfacing and Footpath 
Improvements 

70 30 70 - 

Vehicle Replacement Programme 278 - 278 - 

Town Centre Heritage Scheme 1,285 - 1,285 - 

Multi Use Games Area 17 - 17 - 

Information Technology Refresh 183 - 183 - 

ICT Finance Upgrade via PSPS 272 - 272 - 

Total Non-Towns Fund Projects 2,612 70 2,612  

Boston Town Deal – Accelerated 
Funding 

252 5 252 
- 

Leisure 2,849 - 2,849 - 

Mayflower 822 285 822 - 

St Botolph’s Library 222 - 222 - 

Centre for Food and Fresh Produce 
Logistics 

836 30 836 
- 

Blenkin Memorial Hall 845 231 845 - 

Healing the High Street 312 - 312 - 

Boston Station 1,562 - 1,562 - 

Total Towns Fund Projects 7,700 551 7,700 - 

Grand Total 10,312 621 10,312 - 

 

Table 4 – Capital Programme – Comments on Delivery  

Scheme Comments 

Mayflower Scheme delivery continues, scheme fully financed by Towns Fund grant. 

Blenkin Hall Scheme delivery continues, scheme fully financed by Towns Fund grant. 

 

Capital Receipts 

Return of Investment to be treated as a capital receipt, returned amount of £2.311m. 

Capital Financing 

The current Capital Programme is financed from reserves and external borrowing in line with the Capital Strategy. 

 

 

Page 71



APPENDIX A 
Table 5 indicates the forecast capital resources available to the Council at the end of 2022/23.  The estimated 

position for the following two years is also provided. 

Table 5 – Capital Resources 

 
2021/22 
£’000 

2022/23 
£’000 

2023/24 
£’000 

Capital Resources* available at start of each year 5,578 6,356 6,524 

Capital Investment (estimate in future years) (2,047) (10,312) 14,887 

Additional Sources of Finance    

- New Capital Receipts (estimate in future years) 491 2,311 - 

- Funding from other reserves and internal borrowing 249 246 20 

- External Grants 1,214 7,705 13,711 

- Revenue Contributions - - - 

- External borrowing - - - 

- Budgeted contributions to capital reserve 995 333 344 

- Minimum Revenue Provision (15) (15) (15) 

- Transfer from Capital Reserve to support ongoing projects (110) (100) (100) 

Estimated Capital Resources* at end of each year 6,356 6,524 5,597 

* Capital Reserve and Capital Receipts 

Section 2.4 – Treasury Management 

Investments at 30 June 2022 

During the financial year the Council has made investments in line with the agreed Treasury Management Strategy. 

Detailed in Table 6 are the investments held by the Council at 30th June 2022 excluding accrued interest.  Note this 

represents the position at this one point in time.  The peaks and troughs in cash flow are managed on a daily basis.  

Because the Council collects money on behalf of other organisations which are paid out at future dates (e.g. Council 

Tax and Business Rates) the value of investments held at any point in time does not represent the value of Boston’s 

own resources. 

Table 6 – Investments as at 30 June 2022 

Financial Institution Amount (£) Maturity Date Yield 

HSBC Bank  9,290,000 Instant Access  0.01% 

CCLA Money Market Fund  3,000,000 Instant Access   1.04% 

UK Debt Management Office 8,000,000 14/07/2022 1.13% 

Barclays Bank 3,000,000 95-day notice 1.30% 

Lloyds Bank 3,000,000 95-day notice 0.15% 

Santander 3,000,000 95-day notice 0.40% 

Bank of Scotland  2,000,000 175-day notice 0.16% 

TOTAL 31,290,000   

 

Maturity Structure at 30 June 2022 

Duration Amount (£) Percentage of Total 

Less than one week 12,290,000 25% 

Less than one month 8,000,000   16% 

One to three months -   0% 

Three to six months 11,000,000 22% 

Six to nine months - 0% 

Nine to twelve months - 0% 

More than twelve months 18,222,900 37% 

 

 

Page 72



APPENDIX A 
The Council has purchased property fund units and the table below provides a breakdown in relation to the purchase 

of these units: 

Fund Date of 
Purchase 

Net Asset 
Value at Date 
of Purchase 

£ 

Premium/ 
(Discount) on 

Purchase 
£ 

Premium/ 
(Discount) on 

Purchase 
% 

Total Cost 
 
 

£ 

Black Rock UK Property 
Fund  

 

 

05/08/16 
30/12/16 
28/09/18 

TOTAL 

255,085 
255,085 

3,945,592 
4,455,762 

(5,102) 
(5,103) 
54,449 
44,244 

(2.00) 
(2.00) 
1.38 
0.99 

249,983 
249,982 

4,000.041 
4,500,006 

Schroder UK Real Estate 
Fund 

05/08/16 
03/09/18 

TOTAL 

250,000 
4,020,006 
4,270,006 

- 
(20,000) 
(20,000) 

 

- 
(0.50) 
(0.47) 

250,000 
4,000,006 
4,250,006 

Threadneedle Property 
Unit Trust 

31/08/16 
31/08/18 
28/09/18 
31/10/18 

TOTAL 

263,549 
2,902,441 

483,966 
483,930 

4,133,886 

(13,177) 
86,572 
16,116 
16,357 

105,868 

(5.00) 
2.98 
3.33 
3.38 
2.56 

 

250.372 
2,989,013 

500,082 
500,287 

4,239,754 

M&G Investments UK 
Property Fund 

Less Distribution 
Payments to BBC 

 
14/09/18 

 
31/12/21 
31/01/22 
22/04/22 

TOTAL 

 
3,911,980 

 
(198,040) 
(258,206) 

(2,310,621) 
1,145,113 

 
88,020 

 
 
 
 

88,020 

 
2.25 

 
4,000,000 

 
(2,766,867) 

 
 

1,233,133 

AEW UK Core Property 
Fund 

 
31/10/18 

 
3,745,319 

 
254,681 

 
6.80 

 
4,000,000 

TOTAL  17,750,086 472,813 2.30 18,222,899 

Page 73



APPENDIX A 

Property Fund Investments as at 30 June 2022 

 

The Projected Annualised Distribution Yield is the projected yield for the year based on dividends already received during the current financial year.  

The 2022/23 Annualised Fund Capital Gain/Loss is the projected gain/loss in the capital value of the fund since the start of the financial year calculated by 

reference to the change in the Net Asset Value from 31 March 2022 to the period end. 

The estimated combined return is the total of the Projected Dividend Distribution Yield and the Annualised Fund Capital Gain/Loss. Please note that this is 

the position as at 30 June 2022 and the capital values will fluctuate year on year. 

 

Financial Institution Purchase 
Cost 
(£) 

Estimates 
Revenue 
Received 
2022/23 

 (£) 

Projected 
Annualised 
Distribution 

Yield 2022/23 
 

Net  Asset 
 Value  

(£) 

Total 
Gain/(Loss) 

Since 
Purchase 

 (£) 

2022/23 
Monthly 

Gain/ 
(Loss) 

(£) 

2022/23 
Annualised 

Fund Capital 
Gain/(Loss) 

Since 1/4/22 

2022/23 
Estimated 
Combined 

Return 

BlackRock UK Property Fund  4,500,006 33,357 2.97% Estimate 5,309,819 809,813 36,243 9.16% 12.13% 

Schroder UK Real Estate Fund  4,250,006 36,414 3.44% Estimate 4,981,171 731,165 29,774 6.38% 9.82% 

Threadneedle Property Unit 
Trust 

4,239,754 38,694 3.66% Estimate 4,656,980 417,226 13,734 16.18% 19.84% 

M&G Investments UK 
Property Fund 

1,233,133 3,389 1.10% Estimate 1,391,868 158,734 (4,894) N/K N/K 

AEW UK Core Property Fund  4,000,000 44,877 4.50% Estimate 4,195,683 195,683 10,508 12.83% 17.33% 

TOTAL 18,222,899 156,731  20,535,521 2,312,621 64,349   

P
age 74



APPENDIX A 

An analysis of dividend distributions received and borrowing costs incurred since the purchase of the property funds to 30 June 2022 can be found in the 

table below: 

 

Financial Institution Actual   Dividend 
Distributions Received 

Pre 2022/23 

Budgeted 
Distribution for 

2022/23 

Estimated Dividend 
Distributions Received 

2022/23 

Total Distributions 
Received Since 

Purchase 

BlackRock UK Property Fund  535,257 57,772 33,357 568,614 

Schroder UK Real Estate Fund  478,695 38,388 36,414 515,109 

Threadneedle Property Unit Trust 636,396 42,724 38,694 675,090 

M&G Investments UK Property Fund  458,562 50,886 3,389 461,951 

AEW UK Core Property Fund 622,968 36,857 44,877 667,845 

Total Revenue 2,731,878 226,627 156,731 2,888,609 

P
age 75



APPENDIX A 
Return on Investments 

The Council’s 2022/23 budget for investment income is £748k net of fees. At the end of June 2022 net investment 

income earned was estimated to be approximately £185k which was £2k below the profiled budget.  This figure is 

still an estimate as the actual returns on all property funds to June 2022 are not likely to be known until late August 

2022.  

Treasury investments achieved an average rate of 0.398% compared to the benchmark average 3-month SONIA rate 

of 1.212%. 

Property fund investments are estimated to have achieved an estimated average rate of 3.33%. 

The combined rate achieved on all investments was estimated to be approximately 1.57%. 

The outturn for investment income for 2022/23 is estimated to be £62k above the budget based on current 

investments.  This figure will most likely increase due to the current rising interest rate environment and depends on 

the future returns achieved on property funds 

Borrowing 

The Council has £15.449m of external PWLB borrowing as per the table below. 

 

Entity Amount (£) Start Date Maturity Date Rate 

Public Works Loan Board 10,000,000 10/12/2018 10/12/2068 2.54% 

Public Works Loan Board   4,000,000 13/12/2018 13/12/2068 2.42% 

Public Works Loan Board 
 

  1,449,000 27/03/2019 27/03/2069 2.18% 

TOTAL 15,449,000   2.475% 

Average 

 

Interest costs for 2022/23 on this borrowing are £382,388. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Page 76



APPENDIX A 
Public Works Loan Board (PWLB) Borrowing Rates 

PWLB borrowing rates continued to rise during June following the Bank of England’s increase in base rate to 1.25% 

on 16 June before falling back slightly towards the end of the month. The 50 year PWLB certainty rate was 3.27% as 

at 30 June. 

 

Summary 

Interest rates are now on an upward trend following the Bank of England Base Rate increase to 1.25% on 16 June. 
Market expectations are for further rate hikes during the year, with many predicting that the Base Rate will reach 2% 
by the end of 2022. With the economy growing post pandemic, focus for the MPC will firmly be on tackling 
inflationary pressures.  
 
Rates on new investments with financial institutions and local authorities now range from 1.55% for one-month 
deposits through to 3.10% for one-year deposits.  
 
The property fund valuations remain on a slowing upward trend and during June 2022 the property fund valuations 
increased by £64,349.  M&G UK Property fund is liquidating its assets and therefore the capital value held in the fund 
is decreasing as distribution payments are received.  M&G have now paid Boston BC distribution payments totalling 
£2,766,867 as at 30 June 2022, from the asset sale proceeds. A further distribution payment of £286,877 has been 
received in July 2022. 
 
PWLB borrowing rates continued to rise during June following the Bank of England’s increase in base rate to 1.25% 
on 16 June before falling back slightly towards the end of the month. 
 
Risks prevail in the financial markets and are subject to a continued high level of scrutiny with any significant issues 
arising being reported to the Council’s Audit and Governance Committee. Changes to credit ratings of financial 
institutions are monitored daily and where required reported to the Section 151 Officer for an agreed course of 
action to be taken. 
 

Page 77



APPENDIX A 
Section 2.5 – Insurance 

2022/23 Claims Statistics 

Table 7 details the number of formal insurance claims for Quarter 1 of 2022/23 (figures in brackets are comparable 

figures for 2021/22). 

Table 7 – Insurance Claims 

 Quarter 1 Quarter 2 Quarter 3 Quarter 4 Total 

Public Liability 2 (0) 0(1) 0(1)  0(2) 2 (0) 

Employers Liability 0 (0) 0(0) 0(1) 0(1) 0 (0) 

Motor 2 (1) 0(2) 0(2) 0(5) 2 (1) 

Property 0 (0) 0(0) 0(0) 0(0) 0 (0) 

Total 4 (1) 0(3) 0(4) 0(8) 4 (1) 
 

Insurance Reserves 

The Council maintains an insurance reserve for smaller value insurance claims where the losses are below the 

principal deductible of £25,000.   

At 30th June 2022 the balance on the reserve was £260k, and this balance is monitored on a regular basis to ensure 

that the value of the reserve is sufficient to meet future liabilities. 

Section 2.6 – Debt Collection 

An analysis of the sundry debts the Council held as at 30 June 2022 is show in Table 8. 

Table 8 – Sundry Debt Analysis 

0-30 days 
 

£ 

31-60 days 
 

£ 

61-90 days 
 

£ 

91-120 
days 

 
£ 

121-183 
days 

£ 

184-365 
days 

£ 

Over 365 
days 

£ 

Total 
 

£ 

628,227 288,790 82,152 29,456 87,706 97,970 261,039 1,475,340 

 

Note: This does not include details of invoice amounts (£410,815) that are not yet due 

Section 2.7 – Council Tax and Business Rates 

Council Tax Support Scheme (CTS) 

Following the statutory annual review during 2021/22, the 2022/23 scheme remains unchanged from the previous 

year, allowing for national up-ratings.  This scheme continues to support the Government’s Welfare Reform agenda 

to bring further reductions to the national benefits bill. The scheme sustains the required protection of those of 

pension age, protects vulnerable customers and encourages people into employment.  

Quarter 1 collection rate remains lower than pre-covid. There is uncertainty over the ongoing impact on collection 

and recovery as a result of the knock-on effect of covid and now the cost of living and energy cost crises.  In 

recognition, we continue to remain prudent in setting the bad debt provision in this area. 

 

 

 

 

Page 78



APPENDIX A 
Council Tax – Quarter 1 In-Year Collection 

The collectable debit for the year at 30 June 2022 was £40.4m with a collection rate of 26.34% achieved at 30 June 

2022 (26.94% at 30 June 2021). The collection rate has been affected by the re-profiling of instalments due to an 

increase in direct debits this year associated with the energy rebate scheme). 

Business Rates Appeals 

As at 30 June 2022 the Rateable Value amount for properties under appeal in 2010 list (excluding multiple appeals 

for the same property) was £2.1m, relating to 3 properties on the latest list of outstanding appeals. 97% of this value 

comes from just 1 property and does present some significant risk to the overall level of collectable debit should 

these appeals be successful, leading to significant reductions in rateable value. 

Business Rates – 2022/23 In-Year Collection 

The collectable debit for the year on 30 June was £19.3m with a collection rate of 33.75% achieved at 30 June 2022 

(34.61% 30 June 2021).  The annual collectable debit remains below pre-covid levels as a result of ongoing retail rate 

relief.   

The Covid Additional Relief Fund (CARF) scheme will provide rate relief support against 2021/22 financial year for 

businesses impacted by covid but who had not been supported through other relief schemes.  This relief will be 

awarded in 2022/23. 

 

Page 79



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	A MINUTES
	3 South and East Lincolnshire Community Safety Strategy
	4 To Approve and addition to the Capital Programme to Part Fund the installation of 4 new changing places toilets
	5 Sustainable Products Policy
	Sustainable Products Policy

	6 Quarter 1 Report - Performance and Risk
	Appendix A BBC Q1 Performance
	Appendix B BBC Q1 Strategic Risks

	7 Q1 Finance Report
	Appendix 1 - Q1 Finance


